
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on an open session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on June 24, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting June 24, 2020 - Page 1 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

 Agenda (Estimated Time)  

   

1. Convene Closed Session 5:00 p.m.  

1.1. Roll Call  

1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 

If you have a comment regarding an item on the 
agenda prior to closed session, please submit your 
comment via email to boardclerk@sccs.net. 

   

2. Closed Session Items  

2.1. 
Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 

5:05 p.m. Information for possible action 

2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (Govt. 
Code Section 54957)  

5:10 p.m. Information for possible action 

2.3. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6)  

5:15 p.m. SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update 
to and receive direction from Trustees regarding 
negotiations with the GSCFT for 2020-21. 

2.4. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6)  

5:25 p.m. SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update 
to and receive direction from Trustees regarding 
negotiations with the SCCCE for 2020-21. 

2.5. 
Potential Litigation: Special Education 5:35 p.m. OAH Case No. 2020021270 

2.6. 
Government Code Section 57957.6 
Conference with Labor Negotiators  
Agency Representative: Cynthia Ranii 
Unrepresented Employee: Superintendent 

5:45 p.m. Negotiations regarding Superintendent’s 
annual contract review 

   

3. Convene Open Session 6:00 p.m. 

3.1. Welcome  

1/434



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on an open session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on June 24, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting June 24, 2020 - Page 2 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions or Deletions & 

Announcements 

 

   

4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 

Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City 
School Board Members appreciate your presence 
and your comments regarding items not on the 
agenda are valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board Bylaw protocols, Trustees will not comment on 
Public Comments during this time. 

   
5. Superintendent's/Students’ Reports  6:35 p.m. 

5.1. Superintendent's Report  
 

5.2. Students’ Reports 
 

   

6. Board Members' Reports  
6:45 p.m. 

6.1. Board Members' Reports  
 

6.2. Board President's Report  
 

   

7. Approval of Minutes  None 

   

8. General Public Business   

8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items and 
Items to be Received: These matters may be 
passed by one roll call motion.  

7:00 p.m. 

8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  

8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  

2/434



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on an open session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on June 24, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting June 24, 2020 - Page 3 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids, & Quotes  

8.1.4. New Business: Resolution 39-19-20: Summer 
Bond Projects Authorization 

Recommendation: Approve the annual resolution for the 
authorization of the summer bond projects. 

   

8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 

 

8.2.1. Educational Services  

8.2.1.1. Special Education: Extended School Year 
Contract: ABRITE 

 

8.2.1.2. Special Education: Extended School Year 
Contract: Balance4Kids  

 

8.2.1.3. Special Education: Extended School Year 
Contract: Easter Seals Contract 

 

   
8.2.2. Business Services  

8.2.2.1. Swinerton Builders: Notice of Completion: 
Soquel High School Site Infrastructure and 
Concession Building 

 

8.2.2.2. Food Services: Bids 2020-21  

   
8.2.3. Human Resources  

8.2.3.1. Contract Addendum: Superintendent   

8.2.3.2. Contract Addendums: Assistant 
Superintendents  

 

   

8.2.4. Governance/Superintendent None 

   

3/434



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on an open session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on June 24, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting June 24, 2020 - Page 4 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects Contracts, 
Agreements, Proposals, Bids & Change 
Orders 

 

8.3.1 Development Group Inc.: Proposal: Bay View 
Elementary School Network Cabling 

 

8.3.2. Development Group Inc.: Proposal: Bay View 
Elementary School Underground Conduit 
Installation 

 

8.3.3.  M3 Environmental LLC: Contract: Bay View 
Elementary School Portable Classroom 
Hazardous Materials Inspections 

 

8.3.4. M3 Environmental LLC: Contract: DeLaveaga 
Elementary School Portable Classroom 
Hazardous Materials Inspections 

 

8.3.5. Systems and Space, Inc.: Change Order 1: 
Santa Cruz High School Mobile Shelving 
System 

 

8.3.6. National Fitness Campaign: Proposal Santa 
Cruz High School Fitness Court 

 

8.3.7. Engineered Installation Solutions: Proposal: 
Santa Cruz High School Fitness Court 
Installation 

 

8.3.8. Santa Cruz Signs: Proposal: Santa Cruz High 
School Fitness Court Graphics 

 

   

8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions   

8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 7:05 p.m. 

   

8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  

   

4/434



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on an open session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on June 24, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting June 24, 2020 - Page 5 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.5.1. Governance/Superintendent  

8.5.1.1. New Business: Schools Reopening Plan 7:10 p.m. Recommendation:  Accept the 
Superintendent’s recommended School Reopening Plan 

   

8.5.2. Business Services  

8.5.2.1. Public Hearing: 2020-2021 Budget Adoption 7:45 p.m.  

8.5.2.2. New Business: 2020-2021 Budget Adoption 8:30 p.m. Recommendation: Approve and adopt the 
2020-21 budget. 

   

8.5.3. Human Resources  

8.5.3.1. New Business: Resolution 36-19-20: Classified 
Employee Layoffs 

8:35 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the resolution for 
classified employee layoffs for 2020-21. 

   

8.5.4. Educational Services  

8.5.4.1. New Business: Local Control Accountability 
Plan: COVID-19 Report 

9:00 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the report on 
COVID-19 for the Local Control Accountability Plan. 

   
8.5.5. Governance/Superintendent   

8.5.5.1. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting 
Agendas 

9:10 p.m. 

   

9. Adjournment 
 

   

10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  

   

11. Closed Session Action Report (if necessary)  

   

12. Adjournment  
 

5/434



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on an open session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on June 24, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting June 24, 2020 - Page 6 of 7 

 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District Office, 
133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Sarah Miller 
by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Sarah Miller por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 

1. The Regular Meeting on June 24, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
2. Place Holder for a Regular Meeting on July 15, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
3. The Regular Meeting on July 29, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
4. The Special Meeting for Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearings on August 5, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held at the District 

Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100 
5. The Regular Meeting on August 19, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
6. The Regular Meeting on September 9, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
7. The Regular Meeting on September 23, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
8. The Regular Meeting on October 7, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
9. The Regular Meeting on October 21, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
10. The Regular Meeting on November 4, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
11. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 18, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
12. The Regular Meeting on December 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
13. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
14. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
15. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
16. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
17. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
18. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
19. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
20. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
21. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
22. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
23. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

6/434



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on an open session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on June 24, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting June 24, 2020 - Page 7 of 7 

24. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

7/434



 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Certificated Personnel Actions 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 

California Education Code and the negotiated contract. 

  

This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 

 

Goal #1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 

career opportunities. 

Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 

development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 

Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 

groups within the SCCS student community. 

Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 

effective teaching. 

 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8/434



AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 

2019-2020 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 

 

Certificated: 

 

Alison Blackwell, 2020-21 Instructional Planning Summer Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention and 

Assessment, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 10 hours 

 

Kendra Carmichael, ESY Special Day Class Teacher, Special Education, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to 

exceed 75 hours 

 

Andrea Harris, 2020-21 Instructional Planning Summer Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention and 

Assessment, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 10 hours 

 

Jennifer James, ESY Special Day Class Teacher, Special Education, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 75 

hours 

 

Christina Latham, 2020-21 Instructional Planning Summer Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention and 

Assessment, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 10 hours 

 

Scott Martini, ESY Special Day Class Teacher, Special Education, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 75 

hours 

 

Shannon McGuire-Wynn, 2020-21 Instructional Planning Summer Collaboration, Curriculum, 

Intervention and Assessment, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 10 hours 

 

Melissa Menser, ESY Special Day Class Teacher, Special Education, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 

75 hours 

 

David Norman, 2020-21 Instructional Planning Summer Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention and 

Assessment, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 10 hours 

 

Melissa Schilling, ESY Special Day Class Teacher, Special Education, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 

75 hours 

 

Katy Scowcroft, 2020-21 Instructional Planning Summer Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention and 

Assessment, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 10 hours 

 

Lani White, 2020-21 Instructional Planning Summer Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention and 

Assessment, 6/16/20 - 6/30/20, not to exceed 10 hours 

9/434



 

 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           

 

AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 

  

MEETING DATE:   June 24, 2020    

 

FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 

  

THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   

  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 

           

BACKGROUND: 

The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 

SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 

  

This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 

  

Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 

career opportunities. 

Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 

development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 

Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 

groups within the SCCS student community. 

Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 

effective teaching. 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

10/434



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 
 

Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 6/16/20   

 

•Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 

Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): None  

Re-Hired: None   

Promotion: None 

Promotion to Certificated:    

Demotion: None  

Reclassification: None 

Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: None 

Increase/Reduction in FTE - Position: None 

39-Mo Reinstatement: None 

39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE: None 

63-Mo Reinstatement: None 

Transfer: None 

Transfer W/Increase/Decrease of  FTE: None 

Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days): None 

Leave of Absence: None 

Separation from Service:  

Tavira, Porfirio, Behavior Technician-SPED- BMS, 6.5hrs/9mos, effective 6/4/20 

Retirement:  

Bjornlie, Dena, Paraeducator Special Education, 5hrs/9mos, and Paraeducator-After School 

Programs, 1.2hrs/9mos - BMS, effective, 6/4/20  

Manousos, Janet - School Admin. Asst. III - SCHS, 8hrs/11mos,  corrected retirement Date, 

effective 7/31/20 

Voluntary Demotion: None 

 

•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 

New Temporary Employees: None 

Existing Temporary Employees/EWR: None 

Existing Regular Employees/EWR:  

11/434



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  

Cordero, Lisa, Office Assistant - WL, not to exceed 40 hrs, 6/5 - 6/30/20 

Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): None 

Out of Class: None  

Stipend: None 

 

•Eligibility Lists Established• 

None  

12/434



AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Bids and Quotes  
 
MEETING DATE: June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:   Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes, bids and proposals as submitted.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board approval prior 
to release to vendors or ratification within 60 days as allowed by Education Code 17605. Also included 
for pre-approval are 2020-21 purchase orders which will be entered before the next regular Board 
meeting for Facility Services, Transportation, Food Services, and Central Purchasing for routine supplies 
and services. 
 
The following definitions are provided to clarify the differences between purchase orders, quotes and 
bids: 
 
Purchase Orders: 
All purchases shall be made by formal contract or purchase order or shall be accompanied by a receipt. 
The Superintendent or designee may create a "blanket" or "open" purchase order system for the 
purchase of minor items as needed from a vendor.  
 
Quotes: 
For the purchase of materials and supplies between $15,000 and $60,000 more than one quote is 
required and may be verbal or written. When purchases will be $15,000 to $95,200 for contracted work 
other than Public Works Projects and $60,000 to $95,200 for materials and supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotes/proposals. This process, though not as rigorous as a bid, ensures that the 
District has involved more than one vendor and will secure a competitive price.  
   
Bids/RFP: 
A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, distribution of written specification 
regarding the work or materials, and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work other than CUPCCAA Public Works Projects projected to cost $95,200 and over, or for 
materials and supplies in the sum of $95,200 or over unless a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is 
being utilized under PCC 20118. Under CUPCCAA contracts may be awarded up to $60,000 without 
additional quotes. Informal bidding procedures are followed for Public Works projects from $60,000 to 
$200,000 and a formal bid process occurs for Public Works projects over $200,000 (PCC 20117(B), 
20651(B). Bids are solicited from a wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award 
is made to the lowest responsible bidder, and that the District receives the best price available. 
   
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 

13/434



Board Report with Fund and Resource 

Description

ReqPay11g

Includes Purchase Orders dated 06/02/2020 - 06/12/2020

PO
Number

Req Fund
Order Amt

Ordr
Loc

Req
FundRequisition Information

Resource
DescriptionVendor Name

BPO20-00337 901.82 CATPMBER Biology Supplies 01 NO REPORTING RE3D MOLECULAR DESIGN

PO20-00526 9,690.00 SPEDAPS - FOR IEP MANDATED SERVICES 01 SE:STATE LOCALJAEGER. JENNIFER AN

PO20-01227 697,000.00 SPEDBAY-NPS: FOR IEP MANDATED 

SERVICES

01 SE:STATE LOCALBAY SCHOOL, THE

PO20-01727 1,700.00 CATPREIM for Gateway's Writers Workshop 

6/23-26

01 ESEA:TEACHER QUGATEWAY SCHOOL

PO20-01728 20,381.93 M&OBV E-RATE SWITCHES AND ACCESS 

POINTS

21 BOND, MEASURE BDEVELOPMENT GROUP I

PO20-01729 20,381.93 M&ODLV E-RATE SWITCHES AND 

ACCESS POINTS

21 BOND, MEASURE BDEVELOPMENT GROUP I

PO20-01730 20,381.93 M&OGE E-RATE SWITCHES AND ACCESS 

POINTS

21 BOND, MEASURE BDEVELOPMENT GROUP I

PO20-01731 20,381.93 M&OWL E-RATE SWITCHES AND ACCESS 

POINTS

21 BOND, MEASURE BDEVELOPMENT GROUP I

PO20-01732 28,804.00 M&OB40SS E-RATE SWITCHES AND 

ACCESS POINTS

21 BOND, MEASURE BDEVELOPMENT GROUP I

PO20-01733 30,946.30 CURRCFP Outdoor science camp for BV 01 DONATIONSSANTA CRUZ COUNTY O

PO20-01734 598.00 CATPMind the Gaps Virtual Institute 01 ESEA:TEACHER QUSOLUTION TREE

PO20-01735 350.00 SQHSFloral Arrangements for Graduation 01 NO REPORTING RESOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL

PO20-01736 23,569.00 SPEDOOSTATE-NPS/PROVO: FOR IEP 

MANDATED SERVICES

01 SE:STATE LOCALPROVO CANYON SCHOOL

PO20-01737 19,712.00 SPEDOOSTATE-NPS/TRIUMPH: FOR IEP 

MANDATED SERVICES

01 SE:STATE LOCALTRIUMPH ACADEMY INC

PO20-01738 140.00 CATPCFP - SC/SVNTP workshop 01 ESEA:TEACHER QUSANTA CRUZ COUNTY O

PO20-01739 1,335.00 CATPOne Schoolhouse Hybrid Learning 

Training - CFP

01 ESEA:TEACHER QUGATEWAY SCHOOL

PO20-01740 495.00 BUSNCBO ACCESS BUNDLE FOR JIM 

MONREAL

01 OTHER RESTRICTECASBO

PO20-01741 15,400.00 M&OBOND - MHMHS ATHLETIC FIELD 21 BOND, MEASURE AMOORE TWINING ASSOC

PO20-01742 22,917.92 M&ODISINFECTANT WIPES - COVID 

SUPPLIES

01 NO REPORTING REAMERICAN SUPPLY COR

Total 935,086.76 

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Jun 15 2020 11:23AM

Page 1 of 1

14/434



BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 

JUNE 24, 2020 
 

PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 

 

      

  

Approved by:         Approval Date:  
  

PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 

DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 

TBA District Wide $155,450.00 ConvergeOne 20/21 - Year two (2) of a five (5) 
year Lease Agreement for 2500 
Chromebooks, board approved 
on June 19, 2019.  Unrestricted – 
313 Swift St. 

TBA B40SS, DeLaveaga, 
Westlake, Gault 

$104,940.00 Mobile Modular 20/21 Annual Rental fees on 
multiple Modular classrooms.  
Unrestricted. 

TBA District Wide $186,000.00 US Bank Equipment 
Finance/Ray Morgan 

20/21 Annual Copier 
Lease/Maintenance.  
Unrestricted. 

 

15/434



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

June 24, 2020 
 

PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 

FACILITY SERVICES-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE FUND -8150 
4300 Supplies/Material 

 

 

Approved by:        Approval Date:  

 

  

 

PO/REQ 
NO. 

SITE DOLLAR 
AMOUNT 

VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 

TBA M&O $12,000.00 Anixter OPEN PO 20-21 Lock parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $12,000.00 APPI OPEN PO 20-21 Pool parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $6,000.00 B&B Small Engine Supply OPEN PO 20-21 Grounds Parts/Supplies 

TBA M&O $5,000.00 Bay Plumbing Supply OPEN PO 20-21 Plumbing parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $3,000.00 Central Coast Systems OPEN PO 20-21 Clocks 

TBA M&O $12,000.00 Central Home Supply OPEN PO 20-21 Grounds Materials 

TBA M&O $26,000.00 Coast Paper & Supply OPEN PO 20-21 Janitorial Supplies 

TBA M&O $20,000.00 Ewing Irrigation Supplies OPEN PO 20-21 Irrigation parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $10,000.00 Ferguson OPEN PO 20-21 Plumbing parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $8,000.00 Grainger OPEN PO 20-21 Plumbing parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $24,000.00 Home Depot OPEN PO 20-21 Maintenance parts/supplies  

TBA M&O $3,500.00 IDN Wilco OPEN PO 20-21 Lock parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $5,000.00 Independent Electrical Supply OPEN PO 20-21 Electrical parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $7,000.00 Kelly Moore Paint OPEN PO 20-21 Paint supplies 

TBA M&O $40,000.00 Lincoln Aquatics OPEN PO 20-21 Pool Chemicals/Supplies 

TBA M&O $4,000.00 Riverside Lighting OPEN PO 20-21 Lights parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $30,000.00  San Lorenzo Lumber OPEN PO 20-21 Maintenance parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $12,000.00 Surtec OPEN PO 20-21 Cleaning parts/supplies 

TBA M&O $20,000.00 TMT Enterprises OPEN PO 20-21 Field dirt/fines 

TBA M&O $3,500.00 Western Design OPEN PO 20-21 Flooring materials 

 

16/434



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

June 24, 2020 
 

PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 

FACILITY SERVICES-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE FUND -8150 
5600 Rentals/Repairs 

 

 

Approved by:        Approval Date:  

  

 

PO/REQ 
NO. 

SITE DOLLAR 
AMOUNT 

VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 

TBA M&O $10,000.00 Abacherli Fence OPEN PO 20-21 Fence Repairs 

TBA M&O $32,000.00 ACCO (GEO Wilson) OPEN PO 20-21 HVAC & Plumbing Repairs 

TBA M&O $25,000.00 ACE Portable Services OPEN PO 20-21 Porta Potty Rentals 

TBA M&O $6,000.00 Ken Bewick (SC Telephone) OPEN PO 20-21 Phone Repairs 

TBA M&O $5,000.00 Bobby’s Pit Stop OPEN PO 20-21 Equipment Repairs 

TBA M&O $6,000.00 Certified Backflow Assembly OPEN PO 20-21 Backflow Repairs 

TBA M&O $8,000.00 Central Coast Systems OPEN PO 20-21 Phone/Bell/Intercom 
Repairs 

TBA M&O $6,000.00 Comtel OPEN PO 20-21 Phones/Bells/Intercom 
Repairs 

TBA M&O $10,000.00 Independent Rentals OPEN PO 20-21 Equipment Rentals 

TBA M&O $13,000.00 Kone Elevators OPEN PO 20-21 Elevator Repairs 

TBA M&O $10,000.00 Monro (Lloyds Tire) OPEN PO 20-21 Vehicle Repairs 

TBA M&O $13,000.00 Monterey Bay Telecom OPEN PO 20-21 Phones/Bells/Intercom 
Repairs 

TBA M&O $16,000.00 North Bay Ford OPEN PO 20-21 Vehicle Repairs  

TBA M&O $5,000.00 North Glass OPEN PO 20-21 Window Repairs 

TBA M&O $5,000.00 Phil Allegri Electrical OPEN PO 20-21 Electrical Repairs 

TBA M&O $15,000.00 Superior Alarm OPEN PO 20-21 Alarm Repairs 

TBA M&O $8,000.00 SC Systems OPEN PO 20-21 Telephone Repairs 

TBA M&O $5,000.00 Schrag, Suzanne (John’s 
Electrical) 

OPEN PO 20-21 Small Motor Repairs 

TBA M&O $3,400.00  Surtec OPEN PO 20-21 Custodial Equipment Repairs 

TBA M&O $6,000.00 United Rentals OPEN PO 20-21 Equipment Rentals 

 

17/434



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

June 24, 2020 
 

PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 

FACILITY SERVICES-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE FUND -8150 
5800 Services 

 

 

Approved by:        Approval Date:  

  

 

PO/REQ 
NO. 

SITE DOLLAR 
AMOUNT 

VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 

TBA M&O $6,300.00 A Sign ASAP OPEN PO 20-21 Custom Signs 

TBA M&O $15,000.00 ABA Building Services OPEN PO 20-21 Emergency Cleaning 

TBA M&O $35,000.00 Animal Damage Mgmt. OPEN PO 20-21 Gopher Control 

TBA M&O $5,000.00 California Premier Restoration OPEN PO 20-21 Air Testing/Cleaning 

TBA M&O $4,700.00 Civic Permits OPEN PO 20-21 Facility Use Rental Program 

TBA M&O $2,900.00 Comcast OPEN PO 20-21 Internet/Phone use M&O 

TBA M&O $80,000.00 Community Tree Service OPEN PO 20-21 Tree/Brush 
Removal/Trimming 

TBA M&O $5,000.00 County of Santa Cruz OPEN PO 20-21 Elevator/Lift Permits 

TBA M&O $5,000.00 Hines Pest Control OPEN PO 20-21 Rodent/Pest Removal 

TBA M&O $7800.00 Ingenium OPEN PO 20-21 Hazardous material removal 

TBA M&O $20,000.00 Kone OPEN PO 20-21 Monthly Elevator 
maintenance  

TBA M&O $3,000.00 Kone OPEN PO 20-21 Annual Elevator testing 

TBA M&O $10,000.00 M3 OPEN PO 20-21 Hazmat/Air Testing 

TBA M&O $18,000.00 Pacific Coast Trane OPEN PO 20-21 HVAC System program 

TBA M&O $3,000.00 Team Clean Associates  OPEN PO 20-21 Homeless camp clean up 

TBA M&O $7,600.00  Superior Alarm (Doyle Poland) OPEN PO 20-21 Alarm Monitoring 

TBA M&O $8,000.00 Santa Cruz Records Mgmt. OPEN PO 20-21 Shredding Services 

TBA M&O $5,340.00 Schooldude.com OPEN PO 20-21 Work Order program 

TBA M&O $60,000.00 Sycamore Farms-Goats OPEN PO 20-21 Brush removal/campus 
clean-up 

 

18/434



BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 

June 24, 2020 
 

PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
Food Services – Cafeteria Fund 

For Fiscal Year 20-21 
 

 

 

  
Approved by:         Approval Date:  

 

PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 

DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 

TBA Food Services $150,000.00 Gold Star Foods Open Order for Food Items. 
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $75,000.00 Danielsen Co. Open Order for Food Items. 
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $5,000.00 Danielsen Co. Open Order for Paper Supplies. 
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $5,000.00 Heartland  License Renewal Fees.  
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $5,000.00 Hobart  Repair Services. Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $5,000.00 Oliver Packaging Open Order for Paper Supplies. 
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $5,000.00 Palace  Open Order for Office Supplies. 
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $75,000.00 Producers Dairy Open Order for Food Items. 
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $100,00.00 Sysco  Open Order for Food Items. 
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $5,000.00 Sysco  Open Order for Paper Supplies. 
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $75,000.00 Watsonville  
Coast Produce 

Open Order for Food items.  
Cafeteria Fund.  

TBA Food Services $5,000.00 Rogers Refrigeration inc Open order for Repair services. 
Cafeteria Fund.   

TBA Food Services $4,000.00 Isite Software LLC Open Order for Program 
Renewal. Cafeteria Fund.  

 

19/434



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

June 24, 2020 
 

PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
Transportation – Home to School and Special Ed 

For Fiscal Year 20/21 
 
 

PO/REQ 
NO. 

SITE DOLLAR 
AMOUNT 

VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC.  

TBA Transportation $20,000.00 Flyer’s Open PO for Fuel-Home to 
School 

 

TBA Transportation $13,000.00 Flyer’s Open PO for Fuel-Special Ed  

TBA Transportation $2,500.00 Dixon & Son’s Tires Open PO for Tires and Tire 
Repairs.  Home to School. 

 

TBA Transportation $5,000.00 Dieselworks Open PO for Repairs for busses 
and vans.  Transportation – 
Home to School 

 

TBA Transportation $5,000.00 Dieselworks Open PO for Repairs for 
wheelchair busses.  
Transportation – Special Ed. 

 

TBA Transportation $5,000.00 Napa Auto Open PO for Parts.  
Transportation – Home to 
School. 

 

TBA Transportation $3,000.00 Napa Auto Open PO for Parts.  
Transportation – Special Ed. 

 

TBA Transportation $2,500.00 First Choice/Lloyd’s 
Tire 

Open PO for Tires, Repairs 

Transportation – Home to 
School 

 

TBA Transportation $2,500.00 FIrst Choice/Lloyd’s 
Tire 

Open PO for Tires, Repairs.  
Transportation –  Special Ed. 

 

TBA Transportation $2,500.00 Watsonville Diesel Open PO for Repairs - 
Transportation - Home to 
School 

 

TBA Transportation $2,500.00 Watsonville Diesel Open PO for Repairs for 
Wheelchair busses - 
Transportation - Special Ed. 

 

TBA Transportation $2,500.00 Buswest LLC Open Order for bus parts.  
Transportation-Home to School 

 

TBA Transportation $2,500.00 Pacific Truck Parts Open Order for bus parts. 

Transportation Home to School 

 

TBA Transportation $2,500.00 Dixon & Son’s Tires Open PO for Tires, Repairs, 
Transportation - Special Ed. 

 

20/434



 

 

Approved by:         Approval Date:  

 

  

TBA Transportation $3,700.00 Vertical Bridge Tower Space Rent  

TBA Transportation $3,000.00 Norcal Kenworth Open Order for bus parts. 

Transportation - Home to 
School 

 

TBA Transportation $10,000.00 Lux America Open Order for football 

Transportation.  Unrestricted. 

 

TBA Transportation 5,000.00 San Jose Charters Open Order for football 
transportation.  Unrestricted. 

 

      

 

21/434



AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.1. 

 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Extended School Year Contract—ABRITE  
 
MEETING DATE: June 24, 2020 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency Master Contract for new and continuing services 
through Extended School Year 2020. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the 
identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: One-To-One Aide, Behavior Intervention and Supervision Services for 
11 identified students enrolled in the Special Education Extended School Year (summer) 
program who require these specialized services that could not be provided by District staff.  
Services will be rendered through The ABRITE Organization and are mandated in each student’s 
Individual Education Plan. Service Period: June 17, 2020 through July 31, 2020. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Not to exceed $38,946.67.  Special Education (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 

22/434



23
/4

34



24
/4

34



25
/4

34



26
/4

34



AGENDA ITEM 8.2.1.2. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Extended School Year Contract: Balance4Kids 
 
MEETING DATE: June 24, 2020 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency Master Contract for new and continuing services 
through Extended School Year 2020. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the 
identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: 1:1 Special Circumstance Instructional Aides, Behavior Intervention 
Aides, Behavior Inclusion – Development, Health Care Aides and Applied Behavior Analysis 
Support Services for 15 identified students enrolled in the Special Education Extended School 
Year (summer) program who require these specialized services that could not be provided by 
District staff. Services will be rendered through BALANCE4KIDS and are mandated in each 
student’s Individual Education Plan. Service Period: June 17, 2020 through July 31, 2020. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $31,726.67.  Special Education (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 

27/434



28
/4

34



29
/4

34



30
/4

34



31
/4

34



AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.3. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Extended School Year Contract: Easter Seals 
 
MEETING DATE: June 24, 2020 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency Master Contract for new and continuing services 
through Extended School Year 2020. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the 
identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: 1:1 Special Circumstance Instructional Aides, Behavior Intervention 
Aides, Behavior Therapeutic Specialists and Health Aide Services for 5 identified students 
enrolled in the Special Education Extended School Year (summer) program who require these 
specialized services that could not be provided by District Staff. Services will be rendered 
through Easter Seals Central California and are mandated in each student’s Individual Education 
Plan. Service Period:  June 17, 2020 through July 31, 2020.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $12,252.50. Special Education (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 

32/434



33
/4

34



34
/4

34



35
/4

34



36
/4

34



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Swinerton Builders Notice of Completion for Soquel High School 
Site Infrastructure and Concession Building 

      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept Swinerton Builders notice of completion for the Soquel High School Site Infrastructure 
and concession building construction contract.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The District contracted with Swinerton Builders on October 18, 2018 for Soquel High School site 
infrastructure and concession building project. The work has been inspected and complies with 
the plans and specifications as of April 15, 2020; the construction project is complete. The 
District is continuing to work with the County of Santa Cruz regarding the operation of the 
concession stand. The Board is asked to accept completion of this contract by approving the 
attached Notice of Completion, which will be duly filed with the County. Approval is required to 
meet Public Contract Code §20104.50 which requires that local government agencies pay 

contractors no more than 30 days after receipt of contractor’s request for payment.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None.  
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

37/434



38
/4

34



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.2 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Food Services 2020-2021 Bids for Food & Supplies 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the 2020-2021 recommendations from the Central Coast Purchasers Cooperative for 
the following items: 

 Watsonville Coast Produce – (rollover) Produce Bid 

 P&R Paper Company – (rollover) Paper Bid 

 Producers Dairy – (rollover) Milk Bid 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On August 28, 2019, the Board last approved bids for food items and supplies obtained through 
the Central Coast Purchasers Cooperative, which includes 21 districts who work together to 
secure better pricing from a wide pool of vendors for their programs.  Santa Cruz City Schools 
has participated in the Cooperative since 2005.  The Cooperative solicits bids for grocery, 
produce, dairy and paper goods.  Produce vendors must be located within a 250 mile radius of 
the participating districts, in order to decrease the distance between farms and schools.  The 
Cooperative rates bids on cost, geographic preference, traceability and past 
performance/service reliability. 
 
The above-mentioned bids are current vendors with an outstanding record of service. The 
Central coast Purchaser Cooperative Board previously approved these items for the 2019-2020 
school year.  Due to the price uncertainty and the large market fluctuations, the Cooperative 
recommends rolling these bids over so that their current pricing will be locked in for the 2020-
21 school year.  Grocery bids will be brought to the Board later this summer. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No increase in pricing from the vendors above. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 

39/434



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.2 

Prepared by Amy Hedrick-Farr, Director, Food & Nutrition Services 

40/434



41/434



42/434



43/434



44/434



45/434



46/434



 

AGENDA ITEM 8.2.3.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           

 

 

AGENDA ITEM:         Contract Addendum for SCCS Superintendent 2020-21 

  

MEETING DATE:     June 24, 2020 

 

FROM:                    Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 

  

THROUGH:             Kris Munro, Superintendent   

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Superintendent Agreement - Addendum commencing on July 1, 2020 through June 
30, 2023.   
   

BACKGROUND: 

Per the Board’s agreement with the Superintendent, when the Superintendent receives a 

satisfactory evaluation, the Superintendent’s contract is extended for on additional year, 

making it a three-year agreement. 

 

This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 

Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 

 

  

47/434



ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
June 24, 2020 

 
This is an addendum to the Employment Agreement between the Governing Board of the Santa 
Cruz City Schools (“Board” or “District”) and Kristin Munro (“Superintendent”), dated July 1, 
2019 (“Agreement”). The Board and the Superintendent are collectively referred to herein as 
the “Parties.” 
 
To this end, the Parties hereby mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement and, 
where applicable, all prior addenda thereto as follows: 
 

1. Consistent with Section 1 and Section 5.5 of the Agreement, as Superintendent received 
a Satisfactory evaluation from the Board for the 2019-2020 work year, the Agreement 
term is hereby extended by one (1) additional year and the term shall be through  
June 30, 2023. 
 

2. Section 3.1.1 shall be amended to include as follows: Consistent with the contracts for 
the members of the Districts Cabinet the Superintendent is eligible for an annual 
master’s degree stipend of $1,191, and $1,985 for a doctoral degree. Longevity will be 
added at 2.5% after completion of 5 years of service as Superintendent with another 
2.5% after 10 years, 2.5% after15 years and 2.5% after 20 years. Due to the COVID-19 
pandemic and expected budget reductions, these stipend and longevity provisions 
would be waived until budget reductions are no longer required. Any Board adopted 
furlough days for certificated management employees shall apply to the 
Superintendent. Such furlough days shall have the effect of reducing the 
Superintendent’s work year by the number of furlough days instituted along with a 
corresponding proportional reduction in salary. 

 
It is hereby agreed. 
 
 
 
Kristin Munro 
Superintendent   
 
Date _________ 
 
 
 
 
Cynthia Ranii, Board President 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
Date __________ 

48/434



 

AGENDA ITEM 8.2.3.2. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           

 

 

AGENDA ITEM:         Contract Addendum for SCCS Assistant Superintendent 2020-21 

  

MEETING DATE:     June 24, 2020 

 

FROM:                    Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 

  

THROUGH:             Kris Munro, Superintendent   

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the following Assistant Superintendents Agreements commencing on July 1, 2020 
through June 30, 2022. 
 

1. Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources – Addendum 
2. Assistant Superintendent, Business Services – Addendum 
3. Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services – Addendum   

 

BACKGROUND: 

Per the Board’s agreement with Assistant Superintendents, when an Assistant Superintendent 
receives a satisfactory evaluation, the Assistant Superintendent’s contract will be extended for 
an additional year, creating a two-year agreement. 

This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 

Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 

 

  

49/434



ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

June 24, 2020 
 
 
This is an addendum (“Addendum”) to the Employment Agreement between the Governing 

Board of the Santa Cruz City School (“Board” or “District”) and Molly Parks (“Assistant 

Superintendent”) dated July 1, 2019 (“Agreement”). The Board and the Assistant 

Superintendent are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”. 

To this end, the Parties herby mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement as follows: 

1. Consistent with Section 8 of the Agreement, as Assistant Superintendent received a 

satisfactory evaluation for the 2019-20 school year, the Agreement term is hereby 

extended by one additional year. Accordingly, the term shall be through June 30, 2022, 

unless terminated earlier or extended as pursuant to the terms of the Agreement or as 

required by law. 

2. Any Board adopted furlough days for certificated management employees shall apply 

to the Assistant Superintendent. Such furlough days shall have the effect of reducing 

the Assistant Superintendent’s work year by the number of furlough days instituted 

along with a corresponding proportional reduction in salary. 

 

It is hereby agreed. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent Cynthia Ranii, Board President 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Date Date 

50/434



ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

June 24, 2020 
 
 
This is an addendum (“Addendum”) to the Employment Agreement between the Governing 

Board of the Santa Cruz City School (“Board” or “District”) and Jimmy Monreal (“Assistant 

Superintendent”) dated November 1, 2019 (“Agreement”). The Board and the Assistant 

Superintendent are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”. 

To this end, the Parties herby mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement as follows: 

1. Consistent with Section 8 of the Agreement, as Assistant Superintendent received a 

satisfactory evaluation for the 2019-20 school year, the Agreement term is hereby 

extended by one additional year. Accordingly, the term shall be through June 30, 2022, 

unless terminated earlier or extended as pursuant to the terms of the Agreement or as 

required by law. 

2. Any Board adopted furlough days for certificated management employees shall apply 

to the Assistant Superintendent. Such furlough days shall have the effect of reducing 

the Assistant Superintendent’s work year by the number of furlough days instituted 

along with a corresponding proportional reduction in salary. 

 

It is hereby agreed. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Jimmy Monreal, Assistant Superintendent Cynthia Ranii, Board President 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Date Date 

51/434



ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

June 24, 2020 
 
 
This is an addendum (“Addendum”) to the Employment Agreement between the Governing 

Board of the Santa Cruz City School (“Board” or “District”) and Dorothy Coito (“Assistant 

Superintendent”) dated July 1, 2019 (“Agreement”). The Board and the Assistant 

Superintendent are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”. 

To this end, the Parties herby mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement as follows: 

1. Consistent with Section 8 of the Agreement, as Assistant Superintendent received a 

satisfactory evaluation for the 2019-20 school year, the Agreement term is hereby 

extended by one additional year. Accordingly, the term shall be through June 30, 2022, 

unless terminated earlier or extended as pursuant to the terms of the Agreement or as 

required by law. 

2. Any Board adopted furlough days for certificated management employees shall apply 

to the Assistant Superintendent. Such furlough days shall have the effect of reducing 

the Assistant Superintendent’s work year by the number of furlough days instituted 

along with a corresponding proportional reduction in salary. 

 

It is hereby agreed. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent Cynthia Ranii, Board President 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Date Date 

52/434



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Development Group Inc. Proposal for Bay View Elementary School 
Network Cabling 

      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Development Group Inc. proposal for Bay View Elementary School network cabling. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of data network cabling services and electric services on a time and 
materials basis for Bay View Elementary School. Based on an engineering estimate, this work is 
expected not to exceed 18 weeks at the approved time and materials rate.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$275,000.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 2.22% of the overall site budget 
$12,384,192.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Bay View Elementary School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

53/434



54/434



55/434



56/434



57/434



58/434



59/434



60/434



61/434



62/434



63/434



64/434



65/434



66/434



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Development Group Inc. Proposal for Bay View Elementary School 
Underground Conduit Installation 

      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Development Group Inc. proposal for Bay View Elementary School underground 
conduit installation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of underground conduit installation for the new high bandwidth data 
network with new voice over internet protocol telecommunication system at Bay View 
Elementary School. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$28,029.05, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.22% of the overall site budget 
$12,384,192.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Bay View Elementary School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

67/434



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

  Santa Cruz City Schools 

STATEMENT OF WORK

PROPOS AL 23514

Bay View Elementary School - Underground
PROPOSAL VERSION 1.1

6/11/2020

68/434



 

Table of Contents 
1 Introduction  

1.1 Project Work Summary  

1.2 Project Milestones and Payment Schedule  

1.3 Company Project Stakeholders  

1.4 Company Project Escalation Contacts  

1.5 Installation Site Address(es)  

1.6 Summary of Assumptions  

2 Company Responsibilities  

2.1 General Company Responsibilities  

2.2 Company provided administration and documentation:  

2.3 Inclusions  

2.4 Exclusion  

3 Santa Cruz City Schools Responsibilities  

3.1 General  

3.2 Specific  

4 Signature Forms  

4.1 Statement of Work Agreement  

4.2 Change Request Form  

4.3 Work Acceptance Certification  

 

69/434



1 Introduction 
This Statement of Work (SOW), prepared for Santa Cruz City Schools (the Customer), 
provides work specifics to be performed by Development Group, Inc. (the Company) for 
Proposal 23514. 

1.1 Project Work Summary 
Santa Cruz City Schools has request a proposal for Underground Conduit 
Installation at Bay View Elementary School. 

1.2 Project Milestones and Payment Schedule 

1.2.1 The major milestones, related tasks and resulting schedule for this project will 
be developed depending on the total effort and cost required to complete the 
specific project covered by this Statement of Work.  Delivery of the schedule 
will be due within the limits listed below following contract execution, using 
input from the Customer and the project manager(s) responsible for the 
schedule of the related predecessor project(s). 

 Milestones, tasks, and schedule for the project will be completed within 
three (3) business days following approval of the statement of work. 

 Milestones, tasks, and schedule for the project will be completed within 
twenty one (21) business days following approval of the statement of work. 

 Milestones, tasks, and schedule for the project will be completed within 
ninety (90) business days following approval of the statement of work. 

1.2.2 Any delay in the performance of the Company’s obligations to the Customer 
that is caused by the Customer, its other contractors or suppliers shall be 
treated as an extension and the delivery schedule and time for performance 
shall be extended for a period reflecting the delay caused by the extension or 
suspension. The Company shall resume any suspended work at the earliest 
possible opportunity when directed to do so by the Customer, with respect to 
obligations to other customers and considering available personnel. 

1.2.3 Invoicing, and subsequent payment, for all products related to this project will 
be done in accordance with the terms and conditions of the governing Master 
Services Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to in an Associated Contract. 

1.2.4 An initial invoice for 10% of the value for this Statement of Work will be 
submitted to the Customer at contract signing and shall represent financial 
consideration for the following work performed by the Company: 

70/434



A. Allocation of engineering resources for design and scheduling meeting(s) 

B. Site Survey(s) and/or meeting with Customer’s contractor(s) for the 
purpose of coordinating services (if required) 

1.2.5 Subsequent invoicing for services performed on this project will be submitted 
to the Customer every month, in arrears, for services rendered during the 
preceding two month. Prompt payment of services invoices is guaranteed by 
the Customer and will be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
the governing Master Agreement. 

1.2.6 As per proposal 23514, the initial value for the 
implementation of this Statement of Work is $21,088.80. 
The product cost subtotal for the project is $6,940.25. The 
resulting total cost for this project is $28,029.05. 

  

 

  

71/434



1.3 Company Project Stakeholders 
 

Name Project Role Contact Information 

Natalie Slocum Account Manager 
nslocum@development-group.net 

Office: 530-646-3673 

Daniel Jenkins 
Practice Manager – 

Cabling and Installation 
Services 

djenkins@development-group.net 

Office: 530-646-3566 

 
 

1.4 Customer Project Stakeholders 

Name Project Role Contact Information 

Trevor Miller Director, Facilities 
Services  Office: 831-429-3904 

 

Curtis Gomez Director, Information 
Technology Office: 831-429-3410 

 
 

1.4 Company Project Escalation Contacts 
 

Name Project Role Contact Information 

Dan Lockwood President 
dlockwood@development-group.net 
Office: 530-510-4303 

Tony Jenkins Director, Operations 
tjenkins@development-group.net 

Office: 530-510-4308 

Daniel Jenkins 
Practice Manager – 

Cabling and Installation 
Services 

djenkins@development-group.net 

Office: 530-646-3566 
 

1.5 Installation Site Address(es) 

Bay View Elementary School 
1231 Bay St. 
Santa Cruz, Ca 
95060 

  

72/434



1.6 Summary of Assumptions  

1.6.1 General Assumptions 

A. General assumptions used to prepare this SOW: 

1. All changes to this Statement of Work, whether requested by the 
Company or the Customer, will be via the attached Change Request 
form. 

2. Any quantity of pre-allocated hours including, but not limited to, end-
user training, administrative training and/or project management which 
is not consumed during the course of this Statement of Work may not 
applied to other work efforts and shall not obligate the Company to 
further work beyond the conclusion of this Statement of Work. 

3. The Customer will be prepared for the work to begin upon project kick 
off, and will insure job site access.  

73/434



2 Company Responsibilities 

2.1 General Company Responsibilities 

2.1.1 All equipment listed within this Statement of Work will be upgraded to the most 
recent, recommended software.  In some cases the software recommended 
by the Company may not be the most current version available from the 
manufacturer. 

2.1.2 Unless specified in this scope of work no additional software will be 
configured. In some cases proposals may include licenses to software to 
which the customer is entitled but not scoped to be configured. 

2.1.3 When installing product, Company will connect the power supply (or power 
supplies) to a UPS and/or PDU using the included power cord(s); the standard 
power cord included is a 5-15P to C13, 6ft, 18AWG, black, male to female 
cord.  Power connections requiring a different power cord will either be 
included elsewhere in this Statement of Work or supplied by the Customer. 

2.1.4 All installed Ethernet cables will be neatly connected to the Ethernet 
switch(es) making the best use of existing horizontal and vertical cable 
management hardware. 

2.1.5 Connection(s) to the network will be in accordance with the network topology 
drawing(s) for this project. 

2.2 Company provided administration and documentation: 

2.2.1 Provide detailed as-built drawings and documentation that describe the 
system installation. As-built drawing will include documentation of logical 
network connections, IP addressing, routing protocols, WAN/telecom circuit 
information, device serial numbers and/or VLAN information as appropriate. 

2.2.2 Test all installed hardware and software for proper operation using a detailed 
test plan to be developed jointly by both parties. 

2.2.3 Company will clear all work areas of shipping cartons, packaging and debris 
created by  the Company at the conclusion of each work day. 

2.2.4 Company will maintain a master task list and schedule of all project 
milestones and work items. Customer understands and agrees that the master 
task list and schedule maintained by the Company will be the definitive 
document set by which the project will be managed. 

2.2.5 Company will conduct regular project status meetings with appropriate project 
stakeholders, and other interested third parties, weekly or as otherwise agreed 
to by both parties. The Company will record meeting minutes, maintain an 

74/434



issues list, and list action items for subsequent meetings. Meeting minutes 
and supporting documentation will be distributed to attendees, project 
stakeholders and third-parties at the conclusion of each.  

75/434



2.3 Inclusions 
2.3.1 Install conduit as per plan between the warehouse and the existing 

classroom buildings as per plans  

2.3.2 Trench and install 4 each schedule40 PVC conduits with pull tapes  

2.3.3 Install 2 each N16 boxes and 1 each N30 box  

2.3.4 Backfill trench  

2.3.5 This proposal is based on preliminary plans by DGI sheet A104, dated 
5/18/2020 specifications  

2.3.6 Our price is valid only for the work explicitly covered in this proposal. 
Additional work necessitated by conditions in the field or by requirements 
of the owner not explicitly covered in our proposal will be extra.  

2.3.7 This proposal is valid for 15 days.  

2.3.8 Development Group Inc. reserves the right to review the contract 
documents prior to entering into a contract. This proposal is to be 
included in and made part of any contract agreement.  

2.3.9 Due to the volatility of liquid asphalt pricing, Development Group Inc. will 
require reimbursement for price increases for liquid asphalt prices from 
its suppliers.  

2.3.10 Any work requested by the owner to be performed in inclement weather 
or under “over-optimum” conditions will result in additional costs and will 
be billed on a “time and material” basis.  

2.3.11 This proposal is based on completing the onsite rough grading in one 
single move-in. This includes all sub excavation, excavation and 
embankment operations required to build the project. Storm, sewer, 
water and fire utilities will be installed in one single mobilization. Finish 
grade operations for building pads and concrete pavement areas will 
each be constructed in one move-in respectively. Asphalt pavement 
subgrade, rock or asphalt paving will each be done in a single separate 
move-in.  

2.3.12 All earthwork improvements and grades constructed will be certified 
and/or accepted in writing by the owner/general contractor prior to 
construction of subsequent improvements. Use made by other trades of 
our grade will constitute acceptance of our work.  

2.3.13 Prices are good for all work completed by10/31/2020. Any work 
completed after that date is subject to material and labor cost 
escalations.  

76/434



2.3.14 Development Group Inc. does not accept any responsibility for tracking 
of seal coat material onto concrete surfaces or into homes/offices by 
animals, children or adults.  

2.3.15 This proposal is based on a 5 day workweek Monday through Friday @ 8 
hours per day minimum. Any overtime work will only be performed if 
approved by Contractor in advance and paid as extra work.  

2.3.16 All overhead power lines, utilities or other obstructions which will interfere 
with the operation of our equipment are to be removed or relocated by 
others as required by SCUPI.  

2.3.17 Owner is solely responsible for locating and disclosing the location of all 
known & unknown subsurface conditions, utilities, appurtenances, 
obstructions (whether man-made or natural), or any other interference 
which may be encountered during the prosecution of the Work and fully 
indemnify and hold Contractor harmless for any damage to same unless, 
in the sole opinion of the Contractor, the condition, utility, appurtenance, 
obstruction or interference was properly marked and identified. Work 
within 5-feet of the building footprint is excluded.  

2.3.18 Reasonable, unrestricted legal access and staging areas for equipment 
and material deliveries shall be provided to us, as required for our work 
at all times.  

2.3.19 All water required for construction shall be provided to contractor at no 
cost  

2.3.20 Contractor does not assume any responsibility or liability for any cracking 
or settlement of the existing utilities, buildings, pavements, curbs or any 
other structures which may occur during installation of the Work, or 
which is caused by access requirements of the equipment  

2.3.21 All compaction reports and surveying information shall be promptly 
provided to Development Group Inc. at no cost to Development Group 
Inc. Failure to provide compaction reports or survey information on a 
timely basis as determined by Development Group Inc. may result in 
demobilization and assessment of a re-mobilization charge.  

2.3.22 Prices as set forth herein are for the complete and entire Scope of Work.  

77/434



2.3.23 Owner expressly acknowledges that Contractor’s Subcontractor is 
licensed and authorized to perform the work as shown herein and that 
Contractor is not an engineer or design consultant. Proposals made by 
Contractor are for the sole consideration of the Owner and the Owner’s 
design engineer or consultant who shall be solely responsible for the 
determination whether said work proposed by the Contractor is, or will be 
adequate to satisfy the requirements of the Owner, his agents, or any 
governmental agency. Except as provided herein, no warranty or 
representation of any kind is made with respect to this proposal or any 
resulting Contract or Contract Modification. Warranty with respect to 
fitness for any purpose or use is specifically disclaimed to the fullest 
extent provided by law.  

2.3.24 The provisions of this proposal and any resulting agreement are 
severable, and if any part is found to be unenforceable, the other parts 
shall remain in full force and effect.  

2.3.25 Standby time will be charged by the hour.  

2.4 Exclusion 
2.4.1 Bonds, permits, engineering, staking, all testing, inspection fees, 

shop drawings, as-builts, samples.  
2.4.2 2. Any work not explicitly included in scope descriptions.  
2.4.3 3. Erosion control, repair or maintenance.  
2.4.4 4. Clear and grub or brush removal.  
2.4.5 5. Tree Removal or disposal  
2.4.6 6. Temporary Fencing  
2.4.7 7. Removal or relocation of existing utilities.  
2.4.8 8. Removal of surface or buried debris, septic tanks, leach lines, well 

capping, any items not shown on plans.  

78/434



3 Santa Cruz City Schools Responsibilities 

3.1 General 

3.1.1 It is the responsibility of the Customer to maintain current backups of all stored 
data. Company assumes no responsibility and/or liability for the loss of any 
Customer data. 

3.1.2 Upon the presentation of a Work Acceptance Certification document, the 
Customer will either agree to the completion of the work described therein or 
provide a detailed, written account of the work items in dispute. If neither the 
Work Acceptance Certification document nor a valid dispute are returned to 
the Company within five (5) business days, the work items described in the 
Work Acceptance Certification document shall be deemed to have been 
accepted by the Customer. 

3.2 Specific 

3.2.1 Customers will be responsible for internal DNS changes and external DNS 
changes as requested.  The solution requires that the internal and external 
domains to be the same with the appropriate SRV records. 

3.2.2 Provide a Customer representative that will be the primary point of contact for 
this project.  At a minimum, this person must be available to meet weekly with 
all project stakeholders.  The Customer representative must have 
authorization to incur charges and make decisions that will affect the 
successful implementation of the project, and must be able to provide or 
arrange physical access to all areas of the facility(ies) which will receive 
installed equipment as part of this project. 

3.2.3 Provide accurate scale drawings and/or “blueprints” of the Customer’s 
facility(ies) as may be required for the execution of this Statement of Work. 

3.2.4 Provide all station cabling, Ethernet patch cords, additional necessary power 
cords and any other necessary cables unless specified explicitly elsewhere in 
this statement of work or associated proposal(s). 

3.2.5 Provide laborers to move furniture and fixtures that may be required as part of 
this project; Company will not move any furniture or fixtures. 

3.2.6 Provide a meeting place appropriate to the size of the audience and content 
presented (room, furniture, seating, etc.) for all training sessions and/or other 
presentations that are to be made by the Company. 

3.2.7 Customer understands and agrees to be solely and completely responsible to 
verify the correctness and proper operation of all emergency telecom services 

79/434



including 911, E911 or CAMA trunks whether or not the services were 
installed and/or configured by the Company. 

3.2.8 Provide telecommunications relay rack equipment, including but not limited to 
two-post relay racks, four-post relay racks and/or wall-mounted relay racks or 
cabinets with the correct interior dimensions to accommodate all equipment 
for this project. Such relay rack equipment will be installed in accordance with 
applicable local building codes prior to the Company engaging in this 
Statement of Work. 

3.2.9 If a height exceeding twelve (12) feet is required to install any equipment, a lift 
will be provided by the Customer. 

3.2.10 All roof and/or exterior wall penetrations are the responsibility of the 
Customer. 

3.2.11 Unless otherwise specifically stated elsewhere in this Statement of Work, the 
Customer shall be responsible for the removal of any existing clocks, bells, 
surveillance cameras and/or any other control systems that may be rendered 
obsolete and/or inoperable by the completion of this project. 

3.2.12 Unless otherwise specifically stated elsewhere in this statement of work or 
associated proposal(s), the Customer shall provide all electrical circuits, 
UPS(es), PDU(s) and HVAC required to support active electronic equipment 
being installed by the Company as part of this project. 

3.2.13 Ensure the relay rack (or racks) in each location is/are engineered to support 
the weight of all installed equipment. 

3.2.14 Ensure the equipment location has temperature control that accommodates 
the operational temperature of the equipment outlined in this scope of work. 

3.2.15 Coordinate installation schedules with Company; all work shall be scheduled 
per the MSA, unless otherwise agreed to in an Associated Contract. Changes 
to the project timeline that are the result of work, or lack thereof, by the 
Customer and/or Customer’s agents may result in additional charges.   

3.2.16 Provide an on-site authorized Customer representative at all times when 
Company staff is engaged in work at a Customer’s facility and/or co-located 
datacenter space. The on-site Customer representative must be able to 
provide physical access to all areas of the facility(ies) which will receive 
installed equipment as part of this project including disabling any burglar alarm 
system(s) and/or unlocking any doors. Physical access restrictions 
dramatically reduce work efficiency and may result in additional costs being 
assessed to the Customer. 

3.2.17 Company reserves the right to assess additional change charges to the 
Customer for indirect expenses due to missed appointments. This includes the 

80/434



absence of an authorized Customer representative during on-site work. These 
may also include the associated standby time for Field Engineers, travel 
time/costs for return visit, and/or additional equipment shipping costs.  

3.2.18 Participate in a per-site and/or per IDF/MDF quality acceptance process with 
the Company’s Project Manager or Practice Manager at the conclusion of the 
project, or in the case of a multi-phase project, at the conclusion of each 
phase. 

3.2.19 Schedule, coordinate, and notify end users of any planned network or facility 
service interruptions required during the execution of this Statement of Work. 

3.2.20 At such time as the Company begins work on any computer or other system of 
the Customer, the Customer shall provide the Company all applicable 
passwords, VPN access, and other information required for the Company to 
access such systems and perform services thereon or with respect thereto. 
The furnishing of any such password, VPN access, or other information shall 
be conclusively deemed to include the authorization and approval of any 
federal, state, or local governmental agency or authority for the Company to 
access and work on the systems. 

3.2.21 Notify the Company of any defects with the installation services described 
herein within thirty (30) days after the date of the system cutover. In the event 
of multiple cutover dates (e.g. multi-site deployment), a thirty (30) day period 
will apply to the services provided during each individual cutover. Any defects 
reported by the Customer to the Company beyond thirty (30) days after the 
conclusion of this project will be deemed to be a separate work effort outside 
of this SoW and will be undertaken at the direction of the Customer for 
additional cost. 

3.2.22 Execute changes to any existing IT or facility system which is not specifically 
included in this Statement of Work but which may be necessary for the 
successful implementation thereof. 

 

81/434



4 Signature Forms 

4.1 Statement of Work Agreement 

4.2 Change Request Form 

4.3 Work Acceptance Certification 
 

82/434



Work Acceptance Certification (Sample) 
 

Date: ___________ 

Project Name:  

Project Number: #### 

Project Manager:  

Customer:  

Description of the work completed: 

Project complete Phase complete Major deliverable complete 

 

In reference to the “Master Service Agreement” executed between Development Group, Inc., the 
(“Company”), and [CUSTOMER NAME], the (“Customer”), both parties hereby certify, by the signature of 
an authorized representative, that this project, project phase, or major deliverable meets or exceeds the 
agreed-upon performance standards for scope, quality, schedule and cost.  The Customer further agrees 
that documentation for all relevant security, legal and regulatory requirements have been furnished by the 
Company and/or have been reviewed by the Customer. 

Additional remarks: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto have caused this 
Work Acceptance Certification to be fully executed. 

“CUSTOMER” 

 

 

Print Name:__________________________ 

 

Signature:___________________________  

“COMPANY” 

 

 

Development Group, Inc. 

 

________________________________________ 

Daniel Lockwood 

President 
 

  

83/434



Change Request Form (Sample) 
Date: ___________ 

In reference to the “Master Service Agreement” executed between Development Group, Inc., the 
(“Company”), and [CUSTOMER NAME], the (“Customer”) regarding Project [PROJECT NUMBER], both 
parties hereby certify, by the signature of an authorized representative, this Change Request Form will 
amend and be fully incorporated into the existing Statement of Work (SoW), Version [VERSION 
NUMBER], dated [ISSUE DATE]. 

 

1. Change request number for this project:       

2. Reason for Change Request:       

3. Changes to the SoW:       

4. Schedule impact:       

5. Cost impact:  

 

SoW / Change Request Product(s) Services and/or T&E Total 

Original value of SoW $      $      $      

Value of Change Request #      $      $      $      

New value of SoW $      $      $      

 

6. Purchase order issuance (if applicable): Customer shall issue a written Purchase Order to 
Company, or shall issue an amendment to its original Purchase Order issued under this SoW, for 
the total amount of $     . 

Except as changed herein, all terms and conditions of the SoW remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto have caused this 
Change Request to be fully executed. 

 

“CUSTOMER” 
 

Print Name:__________________________ 

 

Signature:___________________________  

“COMPANY” 
 

Development Group, Inc. 

 

________________________________________ 

Daniel Lockwood 

President 
  

84/434



85/434



D
N

DA

REMOTE MICROPHONE
1

RPS-A DAA-A

ANN

RPS-E DAA-E

TYP.

2

PF

(E)
SHE

D

(E)
LUN

CH
SHE

LTE
R

DSA
#01

104
076

PAR
KIN

GL
OT

C

PAR
KIN

GL
OT

A

PAR
KIN

GL
OT

B

SB

SB

SB

SB

NO
 P
AR
KIN

G

NO
 P
AR
KIN

G

NO PARKING

20'0"

10'

10'
0"

30
'0

"

111
468 TRA

PE
ZE HO

RIZ
. LAD

DE
R

111
357 CH

INN
ING BAR

S HO
RIZ

ON
TAL

142
884

LAD
DE
R

115
236 BA
LL MA

ZE
PA
NE
L

148
426 FIR

EP
OL
E

141
88
6

RAI
L(2

)/H
AN
DLO

OP
 AS

SY

24
16

8
MO

DU
LE

TRA
NS
FER

152
911 RIG
HT

TRA
NS
FER PO

INT

AC
CE
SS
IBL

E
RO
UTE

OF TRA
VE
L

127
681 17
6 BL

OC
K

IMA
GE PA

NE
L

123
331 DO

UB
LE SLI

DE

LOO
P ARC

H

122
914

CLA
TTE

RB
RID

GE

143
195

NEW

116
244

PIP
E B

AR
RIE

R

W/
WH

EEL

120
424

RIB
BO

N 
SLI

DE

STR

LH RH

RH

RH

STR

RH

STR

STR

RH

GE
MIN

I S
LID

E

130
800

PA
NE
L

PER
ISC

OP
E

117
957

152
907

STE
EL 

END PAN
ELS

W/
BA

RR
IER

S &

DEC
K LIN

K
TW
O ST

EPS

lo
w  

e n
d

hi
g h

 e
nd

122
033 72
"

SPY
RO
SLI

DE

NO
 S
UN

BE
AM

CL
IMB

ER

CL
IMB

ER

CO
NIC

AL

143
199

CO
RK
SC

RE
W

148
432

116
244

PIP
E B

AR
RIE

R

152
907

STE
EL 

END PAN
ELS

W/
BA

RR
IER

S &

DEC
K LIN

K
FO
UR ST

EPS

lo
w  

e n
d

hi
g h

 e
nd

24

16
8

MO
DU
LE

TRA
NS
FER

152
911 RIG
HT

TRA
NS
FER PO

INT

AC
CE
SS
IBL

E
RO
UTE

OF TRA
VE
L

"S"
 R
ING

 B
RID

GE

RIG
HT DIR

EC
TIO

N

W/
CR

OS
SO
VER

S

111
467

120
872 SWI
NG OU
T

24

24

32

32

16

HAN
DH

OLD
S

136
157 'S' 

DIS
C

CH
ALL

ENG
E

LEF
T 
W/

4 PER
M

17
37
54

LU
NA
R 
BU
RS
T

DB
 O
NL
Y

TU
RN
IN
G BA

R

S RIN
G

BR
IDG

E

CH
INN

ING BA
R

SIN
GL
E 
S

PA
RA
LLE

L
BA
R

LO
OP

HO
RIZ

ON
TA
L

LA
DD
ER

16

16

24

24

17
61
41

PL
AYS

EN
SE

DE
SIG

N 
30
0

FU
NN
EL NE

T
CL
IMB

ER

14
44
77

W/
1 VER

TIC
AL

LA
DD
ER

11
13
57

CH
INN

ING BA
R

11
13
57

CH
INN

ING BA
R

15
86
78

CL
IMB

ING WA
LL

ON
E 
PO
ST

INC
LU
DE
D

11
13
57 TU

RN
IN
G BA

R

11
13
57 TU

RN
IN
G BA

R

40
"

40
"

40
" 20

"20
"

100
037 DO

UB
LE HU

MP
TY CL

IMB
ER

DB
ON

LY

136
159 SPI

DE
R WE

B
CL
IMB

ER DB
ON

LY

155
077 STA

ND
-U

P
SPI

NN
ER

DB
ON

LY

155
077 STA

ND
-U

P
SP
INN

ER
DB

ON
LY

BL
D

G
. A

BL
D

G
. B

BL
D

G
. C

BL
D

G
. D

BL
D

G
. E

BL
D

G
. B

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

AT
H

W
AY

 T
O

 
N

EW
 C

LA
SS

R
O

O
M

 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

S

(E
) 1

2 
ST

R
AN

D
S 

EX
IS

TS
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E 

M
D

F 
TO

 P
43

AT
 P

43
 ID

F,
 E

XT
EN

D
 6

 S
TR

AN
D

S 
(F

U
SI

O
N

 S
PL

IC
E)

 O
U

T 
TO

 T
H

E 
FA

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
ID

F.

PR
O

VI
D

E 
AN

D
 IN

ST
AL

L 
N

EW
 C

H
R

IS
TY

 #
N

16
 

PU
LL

BO
X 

& 
LI

D
 L

AB
EL

ED
 

"S
YS

TE
M

S"

PR
O

VI
D

E 
AN

D
 IN

ST
AL

L 
N

EW
 C

H
R

IS
TY

 #
N

30
 

PU
LL

BO
X 

& 
LI

D
 L

AB
EL

ED
 

"S
YS

TE
M

S"

PR
O

VI
D

E 
AN

D
 IN

ST
AL

L
(2

) 2
"C

. F
O

R
 D

AT
A

(2
) 2

"C
. F

O
R

 F
U

TU
R

E

3"
 / 1

'-0
"

3"
 / 1

'-0
"

BAY 
ST.

R
U

N
 F

IB
ER

 IN
 1

 1
/4

" E
M

T 
FR

O
M

 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 E
N

TR
Y 

TO
 F

AC
IL

IT
IE

S 
O

FF
IC

E
TE

R
M

IN
AT

E 
IN

 W
AL

L 
M

O
U

N
T 

LI
U

W
AR

EH
O

U
SE

O
FF

IC
ES

R
U

N
 F

IB
ER

 IN
 1

 1
/4

" E
M

T 
U

P 
TH

E 
SI

D
E 

O
F 

TH
E 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 T

O
 A

 S
U

R
FA

C
E 

M
O

U
N

TE
D

 P
U

LL
 C

AN
 A

N
D

 
TH

EN
 IN

TO
 T

H
E 

BU
IL

D
IN

G

P2
3

P2
3

P2
6

P2
0

P3
2

P2
7

P2
4

P2
5

P2
8

P2
9

P3
0

P3
1

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S

T1
022

T1
031

T1
021

T1
023

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 A

M
PO

E/
M

D
F

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 B

ID
F-

B1
12

 S
TR

AN
D

S

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 B

ID
F-

B2
12

 S
TR

AN
D

S

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 D

O
SP

 C
AT

 
TO

 ID
F-

B2

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 E

O
SP

 C
AT

 
TO

 ID
F-

B2

N
EW

 B
LD

G
.

ID
F-

P4
3

(E
) 1

2 
ST

R
AN

D
S

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
SP

 C
AT

 
TO

 ID
F-

B1

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S

ID
F-

FA
C

EX
TE

N
D

 6
 (E

) 
ST

R
AN

D
S 

FR
O

M
  I

D
F-

P4
3

SC
H

O
O

L 
M

AR
Q

U
E

O
SP

 C
AT

 T
O

 
M

D
F

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o

Is
su

eD
at

e

AC
C

O
U

N
T 

M
AN

AG
ER

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
AG

ER

Sh
ee

t N
o.

67
04

 L
oc

kh
ee

d
 D

riv
e 

-R
ed

d
in

g,
 C

A
 9

60
02

Ph
on

e 
(5

30
) 2

29
-0

07
1

w
w

w
.d

gi
ne

xt
.c

om

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

PR
O

JE
C

T:

Sh
ee

t T
itl

e

Te
am

: :

LO
C

AT
IO

N
:

:

C
O

N
ST

. S
VC

S.
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

O
W

N
ER

:

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
:

13
3 

M
IS

IO
N

 S
T.

, S
AN

TA
 C

R
U

Z,
 C

A 
97

07
3

06/08/2020 5:24:22 PM

C:\Users\chopper\Dropbox (Development-Group)\DGI-Customer Projects\986 - SCCS - SCD\CABLING\05 BAYVIEW ES\03.00 DESIGN\03.06 Design Development Drawings\20200608 SCCS BAYVIEW DD5 SET.rvt

T1
01

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
 -

C
AB

LE
R

O
U

TE
S

TB
D

SA
N

TA
 C

R
U

Z 
C

IT
Y

SC
H

O
O

LS

6/
8/

20
20

N
AT

AL
IE

 S
LO

C
U

M

M
AR

TI
N

 T
U

R
N

ER

12
31

 B
ay

 S
t, 

Sa
nt

a 
C

ru
z,

 C
A

95
06

0

BA
Y 

VI
EW

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
SC

H
O

O
L

20
20

 IN
FR

AS
TR

U
C

U
R

E
U

PG
R

AD
E

BA
Y 

VI
EW

EL
EM

EN
TA

R
Y

SC
H

O
O

L C
H

AR
LE

S 
H

O
PP

ER

D
AN

IE
L 

JE
N

KI
N

S

SC
AL

E:
 1

" =
 4

0'
-0

"
1

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
 -

FI
BE

R
 P

AT
H

W
AY

S
5

SI
N

G
LE

 L
IN

E 
FI

BE
R

 D
IA

G
R

AM

RE
VI

SI
O

NS

Re
vi

si
on

Da
te

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

86/434



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: M3 Environmental LLC Contract for Bay View Elementary School 
Portable Classroom Hazardous Materials Inspections 

      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve M3 Environmental LLC contract for Bay View Elementary School portable classroom 
hazardous materials inspections. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of hazardous materials inspections, primarily for asbestos containing 
materials and lead containing paint, for portables 23, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30 and 31 at Bay View 
Elementary School.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$8,750.00.00 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.07% of the overall site budget 
$12,384,192.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Bay View Elementary School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

87/434



1 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT   

 
 

This Independent Contractor Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into effective June 26th , 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Santa Cruz City 
Schools (“District”) and   M3 Environmental LLC                    (“Contractor”). 
 

1. Contractor Services.  Contractor agrees to provide the following services: Hazardous 
materials inspections, primarily asbestos and lead, for portable classrooms 23, 26, 27, 28, 
29, 30 and 31 at Bay View Elementary School as per attached proposal #202968. 
 

2. Contractor Qualifications.  Contractor represents that it or its principals or employees 
assigned to provide services under this Agreement have or shall have in effect all licenses, 
credentials, permits and has otherwise all legal qualifications to perform this Agreement.   

 
3.    Term.  This Agreement shall begin on June 26th , 2020, and shall terminate upon 

completion of the scope of work.  There shall be no extension of the term of this 
Agreement without express written consent by the District and Contractor.  

 
4.  Termination.  The District may terminate this Agreement immediately at any time by 

giving written notice to the Contractor.  Such written notice shall be sufficient to stop 
further performance of services by Contractor.  In the event of termination prior to the end 
of the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall invoice the District for any work 
performed up to the date of termination, and shall promptly return any District property or 
records, and any copies thereof, in its possession to the District.  The District may then 
proceed with the work in any manner the District deems proper. 

 
5. Payment.  Total payment by District to Contractor shall not exceed $8,750.00 (Eight 

Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty dollar and no/100).  District agrees to pay Contractor 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of a detailed invoice.  

 
6. Indemnity.  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 

agents, employees, Board of Education, and members of the Board of Education, from and 
against claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney’s fees 
and costs including fees of consultants) arising out of or resulting from performance of this 
Agreement including, but not limited to, the Contractor’s use of the site; the Contractor’s 
completion of its duties under this Agreement; injury to or death of persons or damage to 
property or delay or damage to the District, its agents, employees, Board of Education, 
members of the Board of Education, for any act, omission, negligence, or willful 
misconduct of the Contractor or its respective agents, subcontractors, employees, material 
or equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees.  Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise 
exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this paragraph.    
 

7. Comprehensive General Liability and Automobile Insurance.  Without limiting 
Contractor’s indemnification as set forth in Section 6 hereof, Contractor shall, before 

88/434



 

2 

beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement, secure 
and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the following 
insurance: 

 
A. Comprehensive General Liability, for bodily injury, personal injury and 

property damage in an amount not less than: $1,000,000.00 per 
occurrence. 
 

AND 
 

B. Automobile Insurance, for bodily injury and property damage combined 
single limit in an amount not less than: $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 

 
 The District shall be named as an additional insured on Contractor’s insurance policy by 

endorsement.  The policy shall provide that it is primary such that insurance maintained by 
the District, if any, shall be excess and not co-primary.  A copy of the declarations page of 
Contractor’s insurance policy shall be attached to this Agreement as proof of insurance.  
 

8. Independent Contractor Status.  While engaged in carrying out the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement, the Contractor is an independent Contractor, and not an officer, 
employee, agent, partner, or joint venturer of the District.  
 

9. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Contractor agrees to provide all necessary workers’ 
compensation insurance for Contractor’s principals and employees, if any, at Contractor’s 
own cost and expense. 

 
10. Fingerprinting.  Contractor shall at all times comply with the fingerprinting and criminal 

background investigation requirements of the California Education Code (“Education 
Code”) section 45125.1.  Accordingly, by checking the applicable boxes below, 
Contractor and District agree to the following: 

 
  A.  Contractor and principals, employees, and subcontractors assigned to provide 

services under this Agreement will have only limited or no contact with District 
students at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 

 
11. Taxes.  Contractor agrees that Contractor has no entitlement to any future work from the 

District or to any employment or fringe benefits from the District.  Payments to the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to Federal and State taxing 
authorities as required.  District will not withhold any money from compensation payable 
to Contractor.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or 
federal unemployment insurance contributions, state or federal income tax or disability 
insurance.  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold District harmless from all 
State and Federal tax consequences and any related consequences stemming from or 
related to this Agreement.  Contractor is independently responsible for the payment of all 
applicable taxes. 
 

89/434



 

3 

12. Assignment.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise 
any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of the District. 
 

13. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 
Contractor and the District and their respective successors and assigns. 
 

14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 
any other provision of this Agreement.  
 

15. Amendments.  The terms of the Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 
supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed 
by both parties. 
 

16. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California and any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or 
with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of 
California for Santa Cruz County, subject to any motion for transfer of venue. 
 

17. Written Notice.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in 
person to the Contractor, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail to the last 
business address known to the person who sends the notice. 

 
District: Contractor: 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
Attn:  Assistant Superintendent,  
Business Services 
 

M3 Environmental LLC 
9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Ste 100 
Monterey, CA 93940 

 

18. Compliance with Law.  Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be 
inserted into this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and this Agreement 
shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein.  Contractor shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, 
including fingerprinting under Education Code section 45125.1, confidentiality of records, 
Education Code section 49406 and others.  Contractor agrees that it shall comply with all 
legal requirements for the performance of duties under this agreement and that failure to 
do so shall constitute material breach. 
 

19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is intended by the Parties as the final expression of 
their agreement with respect to such terms as are included herein and as the complete and 
exclusive statement of its terms and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior 
agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement, nor explained or supplemented by 
evidence of consistent additional terms. 
 

90/434



 

4 

20. Execution of Other Documents.  The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the 
execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional actions 
that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of 
this Agreement. 
 

21. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 
signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, facsimile, or an original, with 
all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 

 
22. Board Approval/Ratification.  The effectiveness of this Agreement is contingent upon 

approval or ratification by the District’s Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS CONTRACTOR 

 
 
 

By: ________________________________ 
 
Name:   ____________________________ 
 
Title:  ______________________________ 

 
Date: _______________________________ 

 

 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: _____________________________  
 
Title:   _____________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________ 

 

Chris Gatward

Principal

6/11/2020

91/434



 
 

9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100 Monterey, CA 93940 T: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 
 

June 9, 2020 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller       Via email: 
Director of Facilities       trevormiller@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.429.3904 (p) 
 
Subject: Proposal for Hazardous Materials Inspections for Seven Portable Classrooms at  Bay View 

Elementary School Located at 1231 Bay Street in Santa Cruz, California 
 Proposal No. 202968 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
M3 Environmental LLC (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide hazardous materials inspections 
(primarily asbestos-containing material [ACM] and lead-containing paint [LCP]) for seven portable 
classrooms at Bay View Elementary School located at 1231 Bay Street in Santa Cruz, California.  This 
proposal is based on information provided to M3 via e-mail and a subsequent telephone conversation with 
you on June 9, 2020.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that seven portable classrooms (23, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, and 31) are to be demolished. The 
buildings will not be vacant and therefore semi-destructive testing will be performed.  All accessible interior, 
exterior, and roofing materials will be tested in each building.     
 
Scope of Work 
 
This proposal presents the services needed to successfully complete this project based on the above 
understanding as follows: 
 

• Conduct a walk-through inspection of the buildings to delineate the scope of work, and to sample 
suspect ACM and LCP.    

• Analyze collected samples in an American Hygiene Association-accredited laboratory using 
polarized light microscopy (PLM) for asbestos and flame atomic absorption (FAA) for lead.   

• Conduct an inspection for other hazardous materials such as PCB light ballasts, fluorescent light 
tubes, and mercury switches.   

• Prepare and submit a written report for the site at the completion of the project that will include field 
floor plans showing sample locations, laboratory documentation for all samples collected, and 
recommendations as appropriate.  We will provide estimates of the quantities of each type of ACM 
and identify LCP by component.   

 
Fees 
 
All services described will be provided for a fee of $8,750 ($1,250 per building). 
 
Our fee is based on the following assumptions: 
 

• Some damage to building materials will be caused by inspection and sampling activities. 
• As the units will be not be vacant - complete destructive sampling cannot be performed.  
• Samples will be analyzed on a 3-day laboratory turnaround time.  Samples can be analyzed on a 

same day lab turnaround time for an additional $15/sample.   

92/434



  

 
 SCCS 

Bay View ES, Portables 
Demolition Survey 

Proposal No. 202968 
 

• Our fee is dependent on gaining ready access to the buildings.  Delays outside of our control will 
be billed at our customary rates following receipt of your prior approval. 

• The surveys will be performed during normal business hours. 
 
Although a reasonable effort will be made to identify suspect materials, this does not guarantee that all 
possible sources of hazardous materials will be identified as certain building materials may be inaccessible 
or hidden by walls, flooring, partitions, etc.  During demolition or renovation operations, building materials 
may be uncovered that may be suspect.  These materials should be sampled and identified before activities 
resume.  
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  We look forward to working with you on this 
project.  If you have any questions, please call me at 831.649.4623. 
 
Sincerely, 
M3 Environmental LLC 

 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
California CAC No. 92-0216 

93/434



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: M3 Environmental LLC Contract for DeLaveaga Elementary School 
Portable Classroom Hazardous Materials Inspections 

      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve M3 Environmental LLC contract for DeLaveaga Elementary School portable classroom 
hazardous materials inspections. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of hazardous materials inspections, primarily for asbestos containing 
materials and lead containing paint, for portables 26 and 17 at DeLaveaga Elementary School.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$3,100.00 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.02% of the overall site budget 
$14,188,861.00 is the total Bond Allocation to DeLaveaga Elementary School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

94/434



1 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT   

 
 

This Independent Contractor Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into effective June 26th , 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Santa Cruz City 
Schools (“District”) and   M3 Environmental LLC                    (“Contractor”). 
 

1. Contractor Services.  Contractor agrees to provide the following services: Hazardous 
materials inspections, primarily asbestos and lead, for portable classrooms 26 and 27 at 
DeLaveaga Elementary School as per attached proposal #202969.  
 

2. Contractor Qualifications.  Contractor represents that it or its principals or employees 
assigned to provide services under this Agreement have or shall have in effect all licenses, 
credentials, permits and has otherwise all legal qualifications to perform this Agreement.   

 
3.    Term.  This Agreement shall begin on June 26th , 2020, and shall terminate upon 

completion of the scope of work.  There shall be no extension of the term of this 
Agreement without express written consent by the District and Contractor.  

 
4.  Termination.  The District may terminate this Agreement immediately at any time by 

giving written notice to the Contractor.  Such written notice shall be sufficient to stop 
further performance of services by Contractor.  In the event of termination prior to the end 
of the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall invoice the District for any work 
performed up to the date of termination, and shall promptly return any District property or 
records, and any copies thereof, in its possession to the District.  The District may then 
proceed with the work in any manner the District deems proper. 

 
5. Payment.  Total payment by District to Contractor shall not exceed $3,100.00 (Three 

Thousand One Hundred dollars and no/100).  District agrees to pay Contractor within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of a detailed invoice.  

 
6. Indemnity.  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 

agents, employees, Board of Education, and members of the Board of Education, from and 
against claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney’s fees 
and costs including fees of consultants) arising out of or resulting from performance of this 
Agreement including, but not limited to, the Contractor’s use of the site; the Contractor’s 
completion of its duties under this Agreement; injury to or death of persons or damage to 
property or delay or damage to the District, its agents, employees, Board of Education, 
members of the Board of Education, for any act, omission, negligence, or willful 
misconduct of the Contractor or its respective agents, subcontractors, employees, material 
or equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees.  Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise 
exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this paragraph.    
 

7. Comprehensive General Liability and Automobile Insurance.  Without limiting 
Contractor’s indemnification as set forth in Section 6 hereof, Contractor shall, before 

95/434



 

2 

beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement, secure 
and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the following 
insurance: 

 
A. Comprehensive General Liability, for bodily injury, personal injury and 

property damage in an amount not less than: $1,000,000.00 per 
occurrence. 
 

AND 
 

B. Automobile Insurance, for bodily injury and property damage combined 
single limit in an amount not less than: $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 

 
 The District shall be named as an additional insured on Contractor’s insurance policy by 

endorsement.  The policy shall provide that it is primary such that insurance maintained by 
the District, if any, shall be excess and not co-primary.  A copy of the declarations page of 
Contractor’s insurance policy shall be attached to this Agreement as proof of insurance.  
 

8. Independent Contractor Status.  While engaged in carrying out the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement, the Contractor is an independent Contractor, and not an officer, 
employee, agent, partner, or joint venturer of the District.  
 

9. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Contractor agrees to provide all necessary workers’ 
compensation insurance for Contractor’s principals and employees, if any, at Contractor’s 
own cost and expense. 

 
10. Fingerprinting.  Contractor shall at all times comply with the fingerprinting and criminal 

background investigation requirements of the California Education Code (“Education 
Code”) section 45125.1.  Accordingly, by checking the applicable boxes below, 
Contractor and District agree to the following: 

 
  A.  Contractor and principals, employees, and subcontractors assigned to provide 

services under this Agreement will have only limited or no contact with District 
students at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 

 
11. Taxes.  Contractor agrees that Contractor has no entitlement to any future work from the 

District or to any employment or fringe benefits from the District.  Payments to the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to Federal and State taxing 
authorities as required.  District will not withhold any money from compensation payable 
to Contractor.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or 
federal unemployment insurance contributions, state or federal income tax or disability 
insurance.  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold District harmless from all 
State and Federal tax consequences and any related consequences stemming from or 
related to this Agreement.  Contractor is independently responsible for the payment of all 
applicable taxes. 
 

96/434



 

3 

12. Assignment.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise 
any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of the District. 
 

13. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 
Contractor and the District and their respective successors and assigns. 
 

14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 
any other provision of this Agreement.  
 

15. Amendments.  The terms of the Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 
supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed 
by both parties. 
 

16. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California and any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or 
with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of 
California for Santa Cruz County, subject to any motion for transfer of venue. 
 

17. Written Notice.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in 
person to the Contractor, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail to the last 
business address known to the person who sends the notice. 

 
District: Contractor: 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
Attn:  Assistant Superintendent,  
Business Services 
 

M3 Environmental LLC 
9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Ste 100 
Monterey, CA 93940 

 

18. Compliance with Law.  Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be 
inserted into this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and this Agreement 
shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein.  Contractor shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, 
including fingerprinting under Education Code section 45125.1, confidentiality of records, 
Education Code section 49406 and others.  Contractor agrees that it shall comply with all 
legal requirements for the performance of duties under this agreement and that failure to 
do so shall constitute material breach. 
 

19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is intended by the Parties as the final expression of 
their agreement with respect to such terms as are included herein and as the complete and 
exclusive statement of its terms and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior 
agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement, nor explained or supplemented by 
evidence of consistent additional terms. 
 

97/434



 

4 

20. Execution of Other Documents.  The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the 
execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional actions 
that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of 
this Agreement. 
 

21. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 
signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, facsimile, or an original, with 
all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 

 
22. Board Approval/Ratification.  The effectiveness of this Agreement is contingent upon 

approval or ratification by the District’s Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS CONTRACTOR 

 
 
 

By: ________________________________ 
 
Name:   ____________________________ 
 
Title:  ______________________________ 

 
Date: _______________________________ 

 

 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: _____________________________  
 
Title:   _____________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________ 

 

Chris Gatward

Principal

6/11/2020

98/434



 
 

9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100 Monterey, CA 93940 T: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 
 

June 9, 2020 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller       Via email: 
Director of Facilities       trevormiller@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.429.3904 (p) 
 
Subject: Proposal for Hazardous Materials Inspections for Portable Classrooms 26 and 27 at De 

Laveaga Elementary School Located at 1145 Morrissey Blvd. in Santa Cruz, California 
 Proposal No. 202969 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
M3 Environmental LLC (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide hazardous materials inspections 
(primarily asbestos-containing material [ACM] and lead-containing paint [LCP]) for portable classrooms 26 
and 27 at De Laveaga Elementary School located at 1145 Morrissey Boulevard in Santa Cruz, California.  
This proposal is based on information provided to M3 via e-mail and a subsequent telephone conversation 
with you on June 9, 2020.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that the two portable classrooms are to be demolished. The buildings will not be vacant 
and therefore semi-destructive testing will be performed.  All accessible interior, exterior, and roofing 
materials will be tested in each building.     
 
Scope of Work 
 
This proposal presents the services needed to successfully complete this project based on the above 
understanding as follows: 
 

• Conduct a walk-through inspection of the buildings to delineate the scope of work, and to sample 
suspect ACM and LCP.    

• Analyze collected samples in an American Hygiene Association-accredited laboratory using 
polarized light microscopy (PLM) for asbestos and flame atomic absorption (FAA) for lead.   

• Conduct an inspection for other hazardous materials such as PCB light ballasts, fluorescent light 
tubes, and mercury switches.   

• Prepare and submit a written report for the site at the completion of the project that will include field 
floor plans showing sample locations, laboratory documentation for all samples collected, and 
recommendations as appropriate.  We will provide estimates of the quantities of each type of ACM 
and identify LCP by component.   

 
Fees 
 
All services described will be provided for a fee of $3,100 ($1,550 per building). 
 
Our fee is based on the following assumptions: 
 

• Some damage to building materials will be caused by inspection and sampling activities. 
• As the units will be not be vacant complete destructive sampling cannot be performed.  
• Samples will be analyzed on a 3-day laboratory turnaround time.  Samples can be analyzed on a 

same day lab turnaround time for an additional $15/sample.   

99/434



  

 
 SCCS 

De Laveaga ES, Portables 
Demolition Survey 

Proposal No. 202969 
 

• Our fee is dependent on gaining ready access to the buildings.  Delays outside of our control will 
be billed at our customary rates following receipt of your prior approval. 

• The surveys will be performed during normal business hours. 
 
Although a reasonable effort will be made to identify suspect materials, this does not guarantee that all 
possible sources of hazardous materials will be identified as certain building materials may be inaccessible 
or hidden by walls, flooring, partitions, etc.  During demolition or renovation operations, building materials 
may be uncovered that may be suspect.  These materials should be sampled and identified before activities 
resume.  
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  We look forward to working with you on this 
project.  If you have any questions, please call me at 831.649.4623. 
 
Sincerely, 
M3 Environmental LLC 

 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
California CAC No. 92-0216 

100/434



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Systems and Space, Inc. Change Order #1 for Santa Cruz High 
School Mobile Shelving System  

      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Systems and Space, Inc. change order #1 for Santa Cruz High School mobile shelving 
system. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of fabrication of a custom rail with 16” anchor plates for the new 
mobile shelving system for the Santa Cruz High School library. This fabrication is required to 
meet structural requirements which had not been completed at the time of the shelving 
purchase. Once received, this modification was requested. The previously approved contract 
amount was $92,775.84 and the new total contract, including this change order, will be 
$95,522.33. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $2,746.49, (2.95% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

101/434



10
2/

43
4



TO: Santa Cruz City Schools 

536 Palm Street 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
CHANGE ORDER 
REQUEST 

 
 
 

 

You are hereby authorized and directed to comply with the 
following approved changes from the contract plans, 

specifications and addenda.  

 

 

From:   SYSTEMS & SPACE, INC. Change Order Request No: 1 

  500 Boulder Court, Suite B   

  Pleasanton, CA  94566  
Project Name: 
       

Voice            (925) 426-1955   Project Name: Santa Cruz High School – Mobile System  

Fax              (925) 426-0882  

 

P.O. DATE REQUISITIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. POINT TERMS  

     Adjustment to rail per 
engineer requirements 

 

 

      

 

QTY UNIT DESCRIPTION ADD-DEDUCT TOTAL 

  Original Contract Amount   $92,775.84 

  Prior Change Orders Issued  $0 

  Use of custom rail with 16” spacing  +$2,746.49 

     

       

       

       

SUBTOTAL $95,522.33 

SALES TAX Included 

SHIPPING & HANDLING Included 

OTHER N/A 

TOTAL $95,522.33 

The above change is hereby added to (deducted from) the consideration named in your Sub-Contract or Purchase Order.  
This document is a supplement to the Sub-Contract or Purchase Order herein referred to and all provisions of the Sub-
Contract or Purchase Order as originally executed except as herein specifically supplemented or amended shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

Accepted by: 
Date: 

 Authorized by: 
Date: 

________________________________________________________________   

Note:  No payment shall be made until this change order is 
executed and returned to the above address. 
 

                                                                               

 

103/434



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: National Fitness Campaign Proposal for Santa Cruz High School 
Fitness Court 

      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve National Fitness Campaign proposal for Santa Cruz High School fitness court. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of a 32’x35’ outdoor bodyweight circuit training system. This is part of 
the National Fitness Campaign Grant Program, previously approved by the Board. The National 
Fitness Campaign program worked with Santa Cruz High School to obtain a $30,000 grant to 
help provide the fitness program and fitness equipment. The Santa Cruz High School Parent 
Teacher Association contributed $10,000.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$10,000.00   Santa Cruz High School PTA Contribution (Restricted) 
$109,990.00 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.29% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

104/434



Registered Office: PO Box 2367, San Francisco, CA, 94126, USA.

QUOTE
Santa Cruz High School
Attention: Santa Cruz City Schools
133 Mission Street Suite 100
SANTA CRUZ CA 95060
UNITED STATES

Date
Jan 23, 2020

Expiry
Jul 21, 2020

Quote Number
QU-0404

National Fitness
Campaign LLC
For all questions
regarding this quote,
contact: info@nfchq.com

Description Quantity Unit Price Tax Amount USD

Fitness Court and National Campaign Resources -
Includes Official Installation Kit

1.00 128,000.00 9.25% 128,000.00

2020 National Grant Funding Award 1.00 (30,000.00) 9.25% (30,000.00)

Custom color powder coating of court's rear wall,
side panels, footsteps and brackets.

1.00 10,000.00 9.25% 10,000.00

Freight, Packing and Insurance for shipment 1.00 2,000.00 Tax
Exempt

2,000.00

Subtotal 110,000.00

TOTAL  CALIFORNIA 9.25% 9,990.00

TOTAL USD 119,990.00

Terms

1. PAYMENT TERMS

Purchaser will pay Seller 100% of the Purchase Price within 30 days of the Delivery Date. Purchaser is responsible for
payment of shipping costs, including packing, insurance and freight. These payment terms will apply unless other approved
payment terms have been agreed to by both parties.

105/434



2. TAX EXEMPTION

This quoted total is based upon Purchaser's tax exempt status, for which verifying documentation must be provided to Seller.
If Purchaser is not tax exempt, sales tax will be applied before Purchase Price is to be considered final or binding.

Registered Office: PO Box 2367, San Francisco, CA, 94126, USA. 106/434



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Engineered Installation Solutions Proposal for Santa Cruz High 
School Fitness Court Installation 

      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Engineered Installation Solutions proposal for Santa Cruz High School fitness court 
installation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of installation of the new fitness court at Santa Cruz High School. This is 
the national installer for the fitness equipment that we have purchased directly. Based on 
discussions with the Architect this is the only contractor that knows how to install this 
specialized system. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$19,500.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.06% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

107/434



 

3475 Nestling Lane | Fort Mill, SC 29708 |  www.ENGinstall.com | 704-628-1212 | Page 1 

 
May 15, 2020 
 
Trevor Miller, Director 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission St, Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 
Engineered Installation Solutions (EIS) is pleased to propose Fitness Court installation as supplied by the National 
Fitness Campaign for Santa Cruz City Schools (Owner) as follows: 
 
Installation of the following items is INCLUDED in the installation: 

- Fitness Court Tile – approximately 32 feet x 32 feet with sloped edge tiles (overall 33.25 feet x 34.5 feet) 
- Anchor Bolts as defined in the Installation Instructions 
- The Fitness Court as defined in the Installation Instructions 
- Floor Marking Paint as defined in the Installation Instructions 

 
EIS agrees to work together with the Owner on the following items: 

- Coordination of local tax & regulatory requirements* 
- Coordination of debris & trash removal and recycling* 
- Coordination of site security fence during installation* 
- Coordination of material delivery to the slab* 
- Hand-off of completed documentation and the maintenance kit 
- Final inspection of The Fitness Court after installation and a completed Assembly Completion Certificate 

from the Installation Manual 
- * Additional fees may apply if EIS becomes responsible for additional scope not known on the date of this proposal 

 
The following items are specifically not included in the installation and must be available and ready for Fitness 
Court installation on the date agreed: 

- Installation of Concrete Slab (must be cured and ready for tile installation per Slab Drawings) 
- Installation of Fitness Court Sign Wall Graphics (to be installed by others after Fitness Court installation) 
- Procurement / supply of The Fitness Court, Fitness Court Tile, and Fitness Court Installation Kit 
- Anything else not specifically listed above as included 

 
The price for the installation per the scope defined above and the terms defined herein is $19,500.00 
(US Dollars). Fifty percent of the price is due upon acceptance. The balance due per this agreement is 
payable Net 30 days after completion. 
 
EIS looks forward to providing the installation of the Fitness Court for Santa Cruz City Schools. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 

Timothy W. Gunnels, PE  Craig J. Ausrud 
President   Vice President  

108/434



 

3475 Nestling Lane | Fort Mill, SC 29708 |  www.ENGinstall.com | 704-628-1212 | Page 2 

 
 
Terms of Proposal: 
 
1. CONTRACT: The contract resulting from the acceptance of this order is to be construed according to the laws of the State of 

South Carolina. This contract is non-assignable by Contractor. 
 
2. SERVICES: Services will be performed within 120 days following receipt of payment unless timing is otherwise affected by the 

Owner. 
 
3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF PURCHASER: The following materials are to be furnished by the Owner and delivered to the construction 

site no later than 08:00 AM on the agreed first day of work. 
a. Concrete Slab ready for installation of tile per the Slab Drawings 
b. The Fitness Court as purchased from National Fitness Campaign 
c. The Fitness Court Tile, Installation Blok, ADA Ramp 
d. The Fitness Court Installation Kit 
e. Site Fence to enclose and secure the installation area 
f. Dedicated Site Access 
g. Available parking for 1 vehicle adjacent to the installation location 

 
4. EXCUSABLE DELAY: Except with respect to defaults of subcontractors, EIS shall not be liable for delays or defaults in installation 

due to causes beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Written notice setting forth the cause for any anticipated 
delay will be given immediately to the Owner. Any delay due to default of a subcontractor will be excusable if beyond the 
control and without the fault or negligence of both EIS and the subcontractor and if EIS established that it could not obtain 
supplies or services from any other source in time to meet scheduled deliveries.  

 
5. SCHEDULING / OWNER DELAYS: Whereas the agreed installation date for the Fitness Court will be highly coordinated with other 

Fitness Court installations and changes to the installation schedule that are out of the control of EIS will be very costly to EIS, 
such schedule changes will be handled as follows: 

 
 NOTE: EIS will work with the Owner when possible to avoid additional incurred charges. 

a. Agreement on the Installation Start Date will be made between Owner and EIS 14 calendar days or more prior to the 
Installation Start Date. 

b. Changes by the Owner to the agreed Installation Start Date more than 14 days from the agreed Installation Start Date will 
be allowed one time. Additional changes to the agreed Installation Start Date will incur a $2,000 charge per occurrence. 

c. Changes by the Owner to the agreed Installation Start Date within 14 days of the agreed Installation Start Date will incur a 
$2,000 charge plus the actual cost of changes to travel reservations. 

d. When EIS arrives to the site on the agreed Installation Start Date, failure of the Owner to provide a security fence will 
result in a $1,000 charge to Owner, due to the additional work required by EIS staff to secure Fitness Court elements 
overnight during the installation. 

e. When EIS arrives to the site on the agreed Installation Start Date, failure of the Owner to provide an accessible dumpster 
within 20 yards of the Fitness Court will result in a $1,000 charge to Owner due to the additional work required by EIS staff 
to transport debris & trash to an alternate location. 

f. When EIS arrives to the site on the agreed Installation Start Date, if the installation site is not ready per the requirements 
listed herein AND the expected date of site readiness will occur within 2 days of the agreed Installation Start Date, a 
$2,000 charge per day will be incurred. 

g. When EIS arrives to the site on the agreed Installation Start Date, if the installation site is not ready at arrival per the 
requirements listed herein AND the expected date of site readiness will occur 3 days or more from the agreed Installation 
Start Date, a $6,000 charge will be incurred plus the actual cost of travel to accommodate the schedule change and return 
to the site at a later date. 

h. If parts are missing or damaged and NOT the fault of EIS, charges may be incurred. If extra days are not required, charges 
will be as incurred by EIS. If extra days are required, each extra day will incur a charge of $2,000 per day plus the actual 
cost of travel changes. If a return trip is required, the charged incurred will be actual cost of travel plus labor charges for 
travel time and time on site. 

i. Additional days required beyond the four days included in the scope will incur a charge of $2,000 per day plus the actual 
cost of living expenses and travel changes. 

  

109/434



 

3475 Nestling Lane | Fort Mill, SC 29708 |  www.ENGinstall.com | 704-628-1212 | Page 3 

 
 
6. DELAYS DUE TO WEATHER OR ACTS OF GOD: Upon arrival at the installation site, delays that are out of the control of both the 

Owner and EIS such as weather and other “Acts of God” will impact both the Owner and EIS from a cost and schedule 
perspective. Such delays that cause EIS to stay at the site for extra days will incur a charge of $1,000 per day.  

 
7. CANCELLATION: The Owner reserves the right to cancel all or any part of the work covered by this agreement if EIS does not 

deliver services as specified or so fails to make progress as to endanger performance of the work and does not correct such 
failure within 10 days after receipt of written notice from Owner specifying such failure, or if EIS breaches any of the terms 
hereof. Additionally, performance of work under this agreement may be terminated by the Owner at its option, in whole or in 
part by delivery, or by e-mailing a written notice of termination whenever the Owner determines such termination is in its best 
interest. Upon termination under this paragraph, Owner shall pay to Contractor the following amounts without duplication: 

  
a. The purchase order price for all completed deliveries of materials, services or construction and not previously paid for. 
b. The actual costs incurred by Contractor in accordance to this purchase order to the extent such costs are reasonable in 

amount and are properly allocable or apportionable under generally accepted accounting practices to the terminated 
portion of this purchase order. Payments shall not exceed the aggregate price specified in this purchase order, less 
payments otherwise made or to be made. 

 
8. ADDITIONAL COSTS: While the proposed price is intended to be inclusive for the scope described, additional costs due to 

specific requirements from the Owner not known at the time of the proposal will be additional to the amount of the proposal. 
Examples of such additional costs are special insurance requirements, bonds, fees, permits, etc. EIS reserves the right to 
provide a revised proposal to cover such fees when discovered. Coverage of additional costs known at the time of the proposal 
are specifically listed in the proposal. 

 
9. REMEDIES: All remedies are herein reserved by the Owner and shall be cumulative and in addition to any further remedies 

provided in law or equity. No waiver of a breach of any provision of this contract shall constitute a waiver of any other breach 
or of such provision. 

 
10. APPLICABLE LAW: This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be governed by and construed by the laws 

of the State of South Carolina applicable to   Agreements between South Carolina parties made and performed in that state, 
without regard to conflicts of law principles. 

 
11. ACCEPTANCE: This quotation may be accepted to form a binding contract upon any one of the following options: 

a. Signature below and payment to Engineered Installation Solutions for the items listed in this quote prior to the expiration 
date. 

b. Issuance of a purchase order to Engineered Installation Solutions referencing this quote and the terms and conditions 
herein prior to the expiration date. 

c. Formal “Installation Agreement” signed thereafter, prior to scheduling of services. 
 
 
Agreed and Accepted: 
 
Owner Authorized Representative Name Printed:  ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Owner Authorized Representative Signature / Date:  ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Date of Acceptance: __________ / _________ / ___________________ 
 

110/434



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Santa Cruz Signs Proposal for Santa Cruz High School Fitness Court 
Graphics 

      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Santa Cruz Signs proposal for Santa Cruz High School fitness court graphics. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of installation of vinyl graphics on the new fitness court at Santa Cruz 
High School. These graphics will include the school name and logo as well as fitness court text.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,895.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.005% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

111/434



Santa Cruz Signs
501-A River St., Santa Cruz, CA, 95060
sales@SantaCruzSigns.com
(831) 337-4467

www.santacruzsigns.com

Quote 101623
SCHS Fitness Graphics

SALES REP INFO
Shawn Adams

President
shawn@santacruzsigns.com

831-337-4467

QUOTE DATE
06/10/2020

QUOTE EXPIRY DATE
07/10/2020

TERMS
50/50

ORDERED BY
Bartos Architecture
1730 S. Amphlett Blvd
Suite 225
San Mateo, CA, 94402, United States of America

INSTALL ADDRESS
Santa Cruz High School
415 Walnut Ave
Santa Cruz, CA, 95060, United States of America

CONTACT INFO
Neal Sellers
ns@bartosarchitecture.com
+1 417-861-9733

# ITEM QTY UOM U.PRICE TOTAL (EXCL. TAX)

Installation 1 Each $1,895.00 $1,895.001
Installation of all customer-supplied adhesive vinyl graphics.
Film to be 3M Envision. This is labor only. Targeted

installation date is end of August/beginning of September
2020. Scope of work to be the following:

• Large "Santa Cruz High School" lettering plus
cardinal logo

• "Fitness Court" text
• Sides of Fitness Court
• Assorted graphics on front of fitness court

Monterey Signs and Santa Cruz Signs Terms and Conditions

*All quotes are valid for 30 days.
*All quotes are considered an estimate. Any additional labor or materials required to complete your project will be added to the final
invoice.
*We kindly request a deposit of 50% of your quote before we begin design or production unless specified in writing.
*Sign permits and final inspections will be billed at actual cost from the City or County, plus $90 per hour staff time.
*A signed or emailed quote accepting the charges (plus deposit) must be received prior to beginning work.
*All labor/installation is non-union and/or non-prevailing wage unless specifically stated above

Subtotal:
Sales Tax (9.25%):
Total:

$1,895.00
$0

$1,895.00

Downpayment (50.0 %) $947.50

SIGNATURE: DATE:

PRINTED ON 2020-06-10 20:30:48 -0700 BY SA CREATED BY SA 1/1

112/434



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 

  

 

AGENDA ITEM:                    Santa Cruz City Schools Reopening School Plan 

 

MEETING DATE:                  June 17, 2020 

 

FROM:                              Kris Munro, Superintendent 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Accept the Superintendent’s recommended Schools Reopening Plan. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, on March 16th, 2020, all Santa Cruz County Schools stopped in person 

instruction.  From March 16th to March 20th, staff took five days to train, prepare and create continuity 

of learning plans to serve our students online. Distance Learning began on March 23rd.  After several 

weeks, it became clear that school would not be physically reopening this school year, and staff began 

planning for a continuum of scenarios for school reopening for the 2020-21 school year.  

 

Our District’s Extended Cabinet, composed of central and site leadership and joined by union leaders, 

began meeting to identify the components of a reopening plan. From there, a decision making flow 

chart was developed that included various means of garnering stakeholder input and a Superintendents’ 

Advisory Committee to guide reopening recommendations. Members of the Advisory Committee 

include students, parents, certificated and classified staff, union members, site and central office 

administrators and trustees. 

 

The committee is using the following guiding principles: 

● Safeguard the health and safety of students and staff 

●  Comply with state and county health department directives and guidelines 

● Consider feedback from multiple and diverse sources 

● Provide consistent online experiences to address both new grade level content and academic gaps 

● Ensure equitable access to teaching and learning; prioritize the needs of the most vulnerable 

students 

● Leverage district and community resources to address achievement and opportunity gaps and 

other reopening needs 

● Build flexibility into reopening plans with “in-school” and “at-home” learning strategies and options 

 

The Advisory Committee meets on May 26, June 1, June 8, and June 15.  The Board reviewed the plan 

for first reading on June 17.   

 

113/434



 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

To be determined as plan is finalized and implemented (Costs will be associated with safety and 

sanitation equipment.) 

  

 

This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 

  

Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 

opportunities. 

Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 

cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 

Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic groups 

within the SCCS student community. 

Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 

teaching. 

Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 

Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 

  

  

 

114/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ 

Reopening Plan 

(Draft) 
June 2020 

 

 

 

 

 
 

115/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

2 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

 

Introduction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 

 

Timeline . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 

                           

Health and Safety. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 

Campus Access 

Health Office Protocols 

Hygiene 

Protective Equipment 

Physical Distancing  

Cleaning and Disinfecting 

Facilities Needs 

Restroom Use 

Employee Training  

Communication  

Plan to Address Positive COVID-19 Cases or Community Surges 

 

Instructional Programs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 

Instructional Scheduling Models  

Instructional Planning 

Student Engagement 

Professional Development 

Collaboration, Assessment and Grading 

Social Emotional Learning 

English Learners 

Career Technical Education 

Performing Arts 

Expanded Learning and Academic Supports 

Co-Curricular Programs 

Guest Teachers (Substitute Teachers) 

 

Students Services: Social Emotional Support, Mental Health and Well-Being . . . . . . . .32                                                              

Tier 1 Universal Supports Students 

Tier 1 Universal Supports: Staff Wellness 

   Tier 1 Classroom Strategies 

   Tier 2 and 3 Early and Targeted Interventions and Supports 

116/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

3 

   Attendance and Enrollment 

Communication and Family Engagement 

 

Special Education . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35                                                            

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)/Essential Protective Gear (EPG) 

Planning for Students who are Medically Fragile and/or Immune Compromised 

Physical Distancing 

 

Food Services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37 

 

Transportation  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

COVID-19 has had a tremendous impact on our entire community.  We are grateful to 

our families who have partnered with us to continue their children’s education through 

117/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

4 

distance learning in the final months of the 19-20 school year.  As we prepare for school 

to reopen in August, we have collaborated with our stakeholders - students, parents, 

teachers, support staff, and union leaders to develop this reopening plan.  This 

document is based on guidance and information taken from the California Department 

of Education CDE Guidebook for Safe Reopening, the California Department of Public 

Health CDPH Guidance, and the California School Nurses Organization Health Services 

Recovery Plan CSNO Resource Guide.   

 

Santa Cruz City Schools is committed to this reopening plan to support both the 

academic and social emotional needs of our students during the pandemic. The plan is 

designed to provide a continuum of instructional options and safety protocols that may 

be implemented as health safety restrictions in our State and County may vary based 

on changes in our community’s rate of infection over the course of the next academic 

year. 

 

Santa Cruz CIty Schools, like all Santa Cruz County Schools,  will follow guidance 

from State and County Health officials about how we open schools in August.  

Ideally, we want students back on campus 5 days a week, but we will not be able 

to do so unless it is deemed safe by State and County Health officials.  We 

recognize that anything less than five days a week is a burden on families, and 

ultimately, health and safety must be our top priority.  

 

In addition to guidance from the State and County, staff and stakeholders have used the 

following principles to guide the development of this plan: 

 

Principles for Reopening Santa Cruz City Schools 

● Safeguard the health and safety of students and staff; comply with the State and 

County Health Department directives and guidelines 

● Consider feedback from diverse and multiple sources  

● Provide consistent online experiences to address both new grade level content 

and academic gaps 

● Ensure equitable access to teaching and learning  

● Prioritize the needs of most vulnerable students  

● Leverage district and community resources to address achievement/opportunity 

gaps and other reopening needs 

● Build flexibility into reopening plans with “in-school” and “at-home” learning 

strategies and options 

 

 

 

Consistent with state and local public health guidelines, as our schools reopen, they will 

do so with new practices in place to decrease the spread of the disease. As it is yet 
118/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

5 

unclear what restrictions remain in place in August, we have established three levels of 

restrictions to help us in our planning, High, Medium, and Low: 

High Restrictions 

● Requires stable groups or cohorts of 12 students that would minimize the 

possibility of student groups to mix with other student groups 

● Requires students to maintain social distancing of 6 ft 

● Take student and staff temperatures before entry onto the campus 

● Students and staff would be required to wear face coverings 

● No large group gatherings would be allowed 

● Protocols and signage to increase healthy practices for handwashing and 

wearing face coverings 

● Sanitizing and disinfecting protocols on all spaces and buses 

 

Medium Restrictions 

● Student groups at 50% of normal size and minimize the possibility of student 

groups to mix with other student groups.  

● Requires students to maintain social distancing of 6 ft 

● Taking student and staff temperatures before entry onto the campus 

● Students and staff would be required to wear masks or cloth face coverings 

● No large group gatherings would be allowed 

● Protocols and signage to increase healthy practices like hand washing and 

wearing face coverings 

● Sanitizing and disinfecting protocols on all spaces and buses 

 

Low Restrictions 

● No large group gatherings would be allowed 

● Protocols and signage to increase healthy practices like hand washing and 

wearing face coverings 

● Sanitizing and disinfecting protocols on all spaces and buses 

 

We will continue working with the Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer to identify 

and clarify the specific restrictions to which we will need to adhere. As these guidelines 

become more specific, we will be able to focus our planning efforts to comply with them.   

119/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

6 

 

TIMELINE 
 

 

 

Santa Cruz County schools 

close to prevent spread of 

COVID-19 

 

 

 

 

Distance Learning Begins 

 

 

 

 

SCCS begins planning for 

reopening 

 

 

 

First reading of Reopening 

Plan by SCCS Board of 

Trustees 

 

 

 

Staff implement Reopening 

Plan 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Professional development, 

teacher collaboration, and 

development of  continuity of 

learning plans 

 

Determination made by County 

Health to remain in distance 

learning for remainder of the 

school year - begin refining 

continuity of learning plans 

 

Reopening guidance provided 

by the State 

 

 

 

Final reading and Plan 

Approval by SCCS Board of 

Trustees 

 

 

 

2020-2021 School Year Begins 

120/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

7 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 

I.  Campus Access 

A. High and Medium Restrictions 
1. Students 

● Designated routes for entry and exit will be determined for each school 
site, using as many entrances as feasible.  

● Students will line up at 6 foot increments in a designated area to be 
screened for symptoms prior to entering the classroom (temperature 
taken, ask about symptoms). 

● Each site will communicate their protocol and process for school entry 
and temperature check prior to the start of school. 

● All students will wash or sanitize their hands upon entering the 
classroom.  Extra handwashing stations will be provided as needed, as 
well as hand sanitizer for all classrooms.   

2. Parents / Guardians  
● Campus access is limited to drop off and pick up; all visitors will wear 

face coverings.  

● Physical distancing will be required and supported by marking 
sidewalks and other waiting areas. 

● Families will be encouraged to remain in cars.  Parents cannot walk 
their children to the classroom, or congregate at school once students 
have been dropped off. 

● No family volunteers will be permitted in the classroom. 

3. Outside Visitors and Groups 
● Visitors limited to individuals who are essential for school operations. 

● Essential visitors will be screened using a symptom checker form and 
temperature check. Visitor badge stickers will be given indicating proof 
of screening. 

● Visitors must sign a form attesting to being symptom-free for the past 
10 days and not been recently exposed to anyone known with COVID-
19. 

● Visitors must wear a face covering. 

● No community volunteers in the classroom. 

121/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

8 

● Work with the County Health Officer to evaluate whether and to what 
extent external community organizations can safely utilize the site and 
campus resources. 

● Establish and communicate common facility protocols for all users of 
district facilities. 

● Communicate protocol for deliveries  

4. Staff 
● All staff must wash or sanitize hands as they enter worksites; additional 

handwashing stations will be available. 

● Staff will follow symptom screening and temperature check protocol as 
determined by their site. 

● Face coverings must be worn while on the worksite in the presence of 
others. 

5. Movement on Campus / Worksite 
● Minimize congregated movement through hallways. 

● Implement protocols for classroom changes in the secondary. 

● Implement staggered breaks and recesses to provide for physical 
distancing requirements. 

B. Low Restrictions 

● Schools can return to normal schedules 

● Practice good hygiene protocols to prevent spread of the virus. 

II. Health Office Protocol 

● If a staff member becomes ill at work, they will immediately contact their 
supervisor and then leave campus. Employees will be sent for testing. County 
Health will be contacted, and tracing protocols will be implemented at the 
County level if the illness is COVID-19 related.  A staff member will be 
assigned to cover the remaining class time of the teacher.  Students will exit 
the room and the room will be sanitized before anyone returns to the class.  

● Teachers will be provided with a protocol for assessing where to send a 
student if they are complaining about feeling ill, designating protocols for 
COVID-19 related symptoms and non-COVID-19 health needs. 

● Each site will designate a small room that is easily cleaned to isolate students 
with COVID-19 related symptoms until they can be picked up or go home with 
parent/caregiver direction. Students with COVID-19 symptoms will remain in 
isolation with continued supervision and care until picked up by an authorized 
adult.  Sites will determine which personnel will monitor students. 

122/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

9 

● Student Services Director, School Nurses and Health Clerks will serve a 
coordinating role to ensure prompt and responsible notification to families and 
to County Health. If a student is exhibiting symptoms of COVID-19, staff will 
communicate with the parent/caregiver and refer to the student’s health 
history form and/or emergency card to identify if the student has a history of 
allergies. 

● If a student goes home ill, a note of his/her movements during that school day 
should be made to provide tracing within the school environment.  

● Families will be notified of positive tests for COVID-19 in their child’s cohort. 

● Students and staff should remain at home if they fill for any reason. 

III. Hygiene 

A.  High, Medium, and Low Restrictions (see page 3 for restriction 
definitions) 
● Implement routines enabling students and staff to regularly wash or sanitize 

their hands. 

● Train staff and students on proper handwashing and hand sanitizing 
techniques and personal protective equipment use, including the following: 
Scrub with soap and water for at least 20 seconds,  or use hand sanitizer  if 
soap and water are not accessible. Staff and students should dry hands 
thoroughly.  

● Provide guidance to families, staff, and students on hygiene that includes 
wash or sanitize hands when: arriving and leaving home; arriving at and 
leaving school; after playing outside; after having close contact with others; 
after using shared surfaces or tools; before and after using restroom; after 
blowing nose, coughing, and sneezing; and before and after eating and 
preparing foods, as well as regularly monitoring their child’s temperature 
before coming to school. 

● Teach and practice protocols for using tissue to wipe the nose and cough and 
sneeze inside the tissue.  

● Teach students to not touch their faces or face coverings. 

IV.  Protective Equipment 
A. High, Medium and Low Restrictions (see page 3 for restriction 

definitions) 

1. Students 

● Under high and medium restrictions, students will use face coverings 
when on campus. Students are encouraged to use face coverings 
under low restrictions.  Parents are encouraged to provide face 
coverings for students. Face coverings will be provided to students if 

123/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

10 

needed. 

● Training and information will be provided to students and families on 
proper use, removal, and washing of cloth face coverings. 

● Modifications to personal protective equipment requirements may be 
made by County Health in low restrictions. District will follow County 
Health guidance.  

2. Staff 
● Provide masks to staff if needed. Gloves will be available on site. Staff 

will wear protective equipment to comply with California Department of 
Public Health (CDPH) guidance for staff appropriate for each 
classification or duty, as well as relevant California Division of 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal/OSHA) 
requirements. 

● Training and information will be provided to staff on proper use, 
removal, and washing of personal protective (PPE) equipment. 

● Some positions may require additional PPE which will be provided by 
the District. 

V. Physical Distancing  

A. High and Medium Restrictions (see page 3 for restriction 
definitions) 

1. Student Physical Distancing 
● Follow physical distancing requirements and limit the number of people in 

all campus spaces to the number that can be reasonably accommodated 
while maintaining a minimum of 6 feet of distance between individuals or 
provide barriers that separate individuals.  

 
● When moving about classrooms, maintain social distancing as practicable. 

● Protect and support students who are at higher risk for severe illness 
(medical conditions that the CDC says may have increased risks) or who 
cannot safely distance from household contacts at higher risk. Students 
may choose from online learning, independent study or our homeschooling 
program.  

● Determine student and staff capacity of each school meeting 6-foot 
physical distancing objectives. 

● Provide students virtual activities in lieu of field trips and intergroup events. 

● Post signage and install barriers to direct traffic around campuses. 

● All students should have a backpack/bag to keep their personal items 
separate from other students. 

124/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

11 

2.  Classrooms 

● Determine maximum capacity for students of each classroom while 
meeting 6-foot physical distancing objectives. 

● In accordance with CDC and CDPH guidance, ensure students are a 
minimum of 6 feet apart and arrange desks in a way that minimizes 
face-to-face contact. 

● If necessary, utilize other campus spaces for instructional activities (e.g. 
lecture halls, gyms, auditoriums, cafeterias, outdoors). 

● Provide developmentally appropriate activities for smaller group 
activities and rearrange furniture and play spaces to maintain 
separation, when possible. 

● Plan and teach protocols for physical distancing as students move between 
classrooms. 

● Ensure that students with disabilities are provided opportunities to 
engage with non-disabled peers to the extent possible as per their 
Individualized Education Plans (IEPs).  

3.  Playgrounds/Outside Spaces/Athletics 

● Establish clear playground procedures that ensure physical distancing. 
 

● Provide supervision to ensure physical distancing. 

● Students should not share equipment (i.e. playground balls).  Use of play 
structures will be allowed with social distancing.  Structures must be 
sanitized daily. 

● Physical education (PE) is limited to activities that do not involve 
physical contact with other students or equipment until advised 
otherwise by state/local public health officials. 

● Intramural and interscholastic athletics will not be resumed until 
allowable according to state/local health officials.   

4. Staff 

● Avoiding staff congregation in work environments, break rooms, staff 
rooms, and bathrooms and for training or staff development. 

● In accordance with Cal/OSHA regulations and guidance, evaluate all 
workspaces to ensure that employees can maintain physical distancing to 
the extent possible. Where possible, rearrange workspaces to incorporate 
a minimum of 6 feet between employees and students. If physical 
distancing between workspaces or between employees and students and 
visitors is not possible, add physical barriers that cannot be moved to 
separate workspaces. 

125/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

12 

● If physical distancing between workspaces or between employees 
and students and visitors is not possible, add physical barriers that 
cannot be moved to separate workspaces. 

VI. Cleaning and Disinfecting 

A. High, Medium, and Low Restrictions (see page 3 for restriction 
definitions) 
● Tables and high touch surfaces will be wiped down regularly (by staff and/or 

students). 

● Custodians will provide sanitizing each night in all spaces, equipment, etc. 
utilizing new backpack misting sanitation systems. 

● Limit sharing of objects and equipment, such as learning manipulatives, 
games and art supplies. But where necessary, clean and disinfect between 
uses.  

● Disinfect surfaces between uses, such as: 
● Desks and tables 
● Chairs 
● Seats on bus 
● Keyboards, phones, headsets, copy machines 

● Disinfect frequently—at least daily—high-touch surfaces, such as: 
● Door handles 
● Handrails 
● Hydration Stations 
● Sink handles 
● Restroom surfaces 
● Toys, games, art supplies, instructional materials 
● Playground equipment 

VII. Facilities Needs 
A. High and Medium Restrictions (see page 3 for restriction definitions) 

● Ensure students are a minimum of 6 feet apart and arrange desks in a way 
that minimizes face-to-face contact.  

● Install barriers where desks and individuals cannot be six feet apart. 

● Establish isolation-like waiting spaces. 

● Ensure hand sanitizer (with a minimum of 60 percent alcohol) is available and 
supervised at or near all classrooms, workstations and on buses. 

● Purchase fans in some offices and classrooms with limited ventilation for 
drawing out stale air and/or pull in fresh air. 

● Keep doors and windows open at all times. 

126/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

13 

● Water fountain use is suspended. Students and staff will use hydration 
stations to refill personal water bottles, observing social distancing while 
doing so.  Hydration stations will be regularly disinfected and sanitized. 

● Establish protocol for accepting deliveries safely. Leave packages in a 
designated area for 24 hours. 

● Maximize central air filtration for heating, ventilation, and air conditioning 
(HVAC) systems. 

● Clear barriers at various locations as needed. 

● Remove and rearrange furniture in office waiting areas, staff rooms and other 
gathering places and mark floors to indicate six feet of physical distancing. 

VIII. Restroom Use  
A. High, Medium, and Low Restrictions (see page 3 for restriction 

definitions) 
● Limit the number of students in any restroom at a time. 

● Provide signage and lessons on hand washing with soap before and after 
using the restroom.  

● Post signage and guidelines and markers on the floor to support physical 
distancing. 

IX. Employee Training  

A. Develop and provide training on the following: 
● Disinfecting frequency and tools and chemicals used in accordance with 

the Healthy Schools Act, CDPR guidance, and Cal/OSHA regulations. For 
staff who use hazardous chemicals for cleaning, specialized training is 
required. 

●  Physical distancing of staff and students. 

● Symptom screening, including temperature checks. 

● State and local health standards and recommendations, including, but not 
limited to, the following: 

■ Proper use of protective equipment, including information on 
limitations of some face coverings that do not protect the wearer 
and are not PPE but can help protect people near the wearer. 
Face coverings do not replace the need for physical distancing 
and frequent handwashing. Face coverings are most essential 
when physical distancing is not possible. Also include training on 
removal and washing of face coverings. 

■ Cough and sneeze etiquette. 
■ Keeping one’s hands away from one’s face. 
■  Frequent hand washing and proper technique. 

127/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

14 

■ Confidentiality around health recording and reporting. 

● Training for school health staff on clinical manifestations of 
COVID-19, pediatric presentations, and CDC transmission-
based precautions. 

● Training on trauma-informed practices and suicide 
prevention. 

X. Communication  

A. High Restrictions, Medium, and Low Restrictions (see page 3 for 
restriction definitions) 

● Provide educational materials to families including enhanced sanitation 
practices, physical distancing guidelines and their importance, use of face 
coverings, screening practices, conducting training and education virtually, 
or, if in-person, ensure distancing is maintained. 

● Instruct families to screen students before leaving for school for 
symptoms: 

○ Elevated temperature 
○ Chills 
○ Cough 
○ Shortness of Breath or Difficulty Breathing 
○ Fatigue  
○ Muscle or body aches 
○ New Loss of Taste or Smell 
○ Sore Throat 
○ Congestion or Runny Nose 
○ Nausea or Vomiting 
○ Diarrhea 

 
● Students and staff must stay home if they are ill for any reason,  have 

symptoms of COVID-19 or if they have had close contact with a person 
diagnosed with COVID-19. 
 

● Sick staff members and students may not to return to school until they 
have met CDC criteria to discontinue home isolation, including 3 days with 
no fever, symptoms have improved and 10 days since symptoms first 
appeared. 

● Implement student and staff attendance policies that allow sick staff and 
students to stay at home without fear of reprisal or school failure and 
ensure staff, students and students’ families are aware of these policies. 

● Inform employees about access to COVID-19 testing for essential 
workers. 

128/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

15 

XI. Plan to Address Positive COVID-19 Cases or Community Surges 

● Document/track incidents of possible exposure and notify local health 
officials, staff, and families immediately of any positive case of COVID-19 
while maintaining confidentiality, as required under FERPA and state law 
related to privacy of educational records.  

● Work with County Health for contact tracing and direction on any potential full 
or partial school closure due to exposure. 

● Follow all State and County Health guidance on restrictions resulting from 
positive cases or community surges.  

  

129/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

16 

INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS 

Instructional Scheduling Models 

As our schools plan to reopen, the instructional schedule model chosen will become 
the foundation of a student’s and family's experience in their school community. 
Santa Cruz City Schools is focused on student learning and academic achievement 
while also supporting students’ social–emotional well-being.  Ideally, we would have 
students return to campus five days a week.  However, this is not likely given public 
health restrictions needed to ensure safety.   

 

We recognize there are needed statutory changes to accommodate the instructional 
schedule models in this document. These models do not address California’s current 
student attendance requirements, and may need to be modified to mirror future 
changes to state mandates.  

 

As our schools reopen and adjustments are made to meet health and safety 
guidelines, we may start the school year with one instructional schedule model and, 
as new information becomes available about health and safety, transition to a 
different model. Guidelines for high quality distance learning are being developed and 
professional learning will be provided to staff as we approach the new school year.  

 

Parents will be notified what instructional model will be used, as well as what days 
their child will attend classes in medium restrictions as soon as guidance is given 
from County Public Health.  If the instructional model changes during the year, we will 
inform parents and students as quickly as possible.  We recognize that these 
modified schedules and changes make it difficult for families to plan day care and 
work schedules.   

Regardless of the instructional schedule model, we will continue to work to eliminate 
the barriers to student success that existed before the closure. Santa Cruz City 
Schools is offering several options for families that desire full time independent 
studies or home schooling. See below for descriptions of the three programs.  

○ Ark Independent Studies Program (Grades 6-12) 
○ Traditional Homeschooling at Alternative Family Education (K - 12th 

Grade) 
○ Alternative Programs for Full Time Distance Learning 

 

I. Elementary Scenarios 
A. High Restrictions Scenario for Elementary:  Majority of students in full online 

learning with potential for some students on campus 
● Some students could be invited to attend the “Resource Center,” 1 educator 

per 12 students, static group, 3 days per week (students TBD). The details to 
this are not finalized. 

130/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

17 

● There would be weekly/biweekly pickup of materials for students (assuming 
there are no shelter-in-place restrictions). 

● Teachers are on campus daily, pushing out 5 days of online learning, and 
supplementing those lessons with the students on campus 3 days a week. 
(Teachers with high risk conditions that require accommodations, may request 
an Interactive Process meeting to determine whether along with their doctor’s 
note, accommodations requested could be met.) 

● On site classes would be 9:30-12:30pm. 

● Online instruction expectations will be outlined for students and parents. 

● Redesign of online instruction to include opportunities for live instruction, that 
accompanies the work done in person. 

● No after school childcare 

Potential Elementary Teacher Schedule--high restrictions 

Teacher Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

8:00 (30 min 
before start) 

Prep/Plannin
g 

Prep/Planning Prep/Planning Prep/Planning Prep/Planning 

8:30/8:45 Online class 
meeting 

Meeting with 
online learners 

Meeting with 
online learners 

Meeting with 
online learners 

Online class 
meeting 

9:30-12:30 
 
Staff 
Professional 
Development 
first 
Wednesday 
of month 
 
Staff meeting 
2nd Tuesday 
of month 
 
Potential 
Second staff 
meeting on 
4th Tuesday 
for 
unanticipated 
business 

Online 
meetings with 
just full time 
online 
learners to go 
through the 
week 

Online 
learners 
watching video 
instruction and 
doing work 
 
Small group in 
class with 
teacher 
working on the 
same online 
learning 
assignments. 

Online 
learners 
watching video 
instruction and 
doing work 
 
Small group in 
class with 
teacher 
working on the 
same online 
learning 
assignments. 

Online learners 
watching video 
instruction and 
doing work 
 
Small group in 
class with 
teacher 
working on the 
same online 
learning 
assignments. 

Online  
learning 
provided by 
specials 
teachers for all 
students. 
 
Prep/Planning/
Collaboration 
 

12:30-1:10 Lunch Lunch Lunch Lunch Lunch 

131/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

18 

1:10-3:00 
 

Prep/Plannin
g/Collaboratio
n 

Office 
hours/Parent 
communicatio
n 

Office 
hours/Parent 
communication 

Office 
hours/Parent 
communication 

Prep/Planning/
Collaboration 

 
 
Potential Elementary Student Schedule--high restrictions 

 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

Full time 
online 
learner 
at home  
 

Class 
meeting 
 
Smaller 
group 
meeting with 
teacher to 
clarify work 
for the week 
 
Work on 
assignments 

Class/Small 
group 
meeting 
 
Watch 
livestream or 
recorded 
instruction 
from 
classroom 
 
Work on 
assignments 

Class/Small 
group 
meeting 
 
Watch 
livestream or 
recorded 
instruction 
from 
classroom 
 
Work on 
assignments 

Class/Small 
group 
meeting 
 
Watch 
livestream or 
recorded 
instruction 
from 
classroom 
 
Work on 
assignments 

Class meeting 
 
Complete 
onlineFriday 
activities 
provided by 
specials 
teachers and 
catch up on 
work for the 
week 

Part time 
online 
learner (if we 
are able to 
implement a 
resource 
center 
concept) 

Class 
meeting 
(from home) 
 
Work on 
assignments 
(at home) 

Participate in 
instruction in 
the 
classroom 
 
Work on 
online 
assignments 
and get 
support from 
teachers 

Participate in 
instruction in 
the 
classroom 
 
Work on 
online 
assignments 
and get 
support from 
teachers 

Participate in 
instructions 
in the 
classroom 
 
Work on 
online 
assignments 
and get 
support from 
teachers 

Complete 
online Friday 
activities 
provided by 
specials 
teachers and 
catch up on 
work for the 
week (at home) 

 
 

B.  Medium Restrictions Scenario for Elementary 
Students attend class two days per week 

● Classes split into two equal groups. 
● Half the class attends school on Tuesday and Wednesday. The other half 

attends on Thursday and Friday.   
● Teachers provide two days of on-site instruction and 2 days of online 

learning, with the 3rd day of online learning provided by “specials” teachers 
(Art, Music, Library, Counseling, etc) 

● No after school childcare. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

19 

Potential Elementary Teacher Schedule--medium restrictions 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

Prep/Planning/ 
Collaboration 
 
Prepare 2 days of 
in class lessons 
and 2 days of 
distance learning 
that compliments 
the in class 
lessons. 
 
Art, music and 
other lessons 
provided by 
specials 
instructors for 
online learning 

Spend the day 
with group 1 
doing prepared 
lessons in class 
lessons. 
 
Livestream or 
flipped lessons 
reading and math 
for students at 
home. 
 
Staff meeting 2nd 
Tuesday of 
month. 
 
Potential Second 
staff meeting on 
4th Tuesday for 
unanticipated 
business 

Spend the day 
with group 1 
doing prepared 
lessons in class 
lessons. 
 
Livestream or 
flipped lessons 
reading and math 
for students at 
home. 
 
 
 
 
Staff Professional 
Development  
first Wednesday 
of month. 

Spend the day 
with group 2 
doing prepared 
lessons in class 
lessons. 
 
Livestream or 
flipped lessons 
reading and math 
for students at 
home. 

Spend the day 
with group 2 
doing prepared 
lessons in class 
lessons. 
 
Livestream or 
flipped lessons 
reading and math 
for students at 
home. 

Lunch provided per teacher contract 

 
Potential Elementary Student Schedule--medium restrictions 

 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

Group 1 
student 

Complete 
online activities 
related to art, 
music, library, 
life lab, social 
emotional 
health. 
 

Attend class. Attend class. Complete 
online learning 
related to work 
done in class 
the prior T/W. 

Complete 
online learning 
related to work 
done in class 
the prior T/. 

Group 2 
student 

Complete 
online activities 
related to art, 
music, library, 
life lab, social 
emotional 
health 

Complete 
online learning 
related to work 
done in class 
the prior TH/F. 

Complete online 
learning related 
to work done in 
class the prior 
TH/F. 

Attend class. Attend class.  

 
 
 

133/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

20 

 
 

C.  Low Restrictions Scenario for Elementary 
● This scenario is the closest to what “regular school” looks like. 
● Students would be able to be part of daily classroom activities at standard class 

size. 
● Cleaning protocols, hygiene and hand washing routines would be followed.  
● Instruction will be given to students about personal space 
● Full time distance learning option available by semester. 

 

II.Secondary Scenarios 

A. High Restrictions Scenario for Secondary:  Distance learning for all courses  
● Schools establish a regular online learning schedule (see Medium Restriction 6 

Period Schedule) & implement updated district guidelines for distance learning 
that will be finalized over the summer. 

 
● Teachers with high risk conditions that require accommodations, may request an 

Interactive Process meeting to determine whether along with their doctor’s note, 
accommodations requested could be met. 

B.  Medium Restrictions Scenario for Secondary 

● 50% of students on campus. 

● Class sizes permit a minimum 6 ft of distance between all persons in the 
classroom. 

● Students on campus for face to face instruction two days a week. 

● In person classes are 50-60 minutes long.   

● To avoid large groupings of students, students pick up lunch and leave 
campus at the end of the day. 

Proposed schedule for Branciforte MS, Mission Hill MS, Harbor HS, Soquel HS 

Time Monday 
(Virtual) 

 Time Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

7:45-8:15 
(30 min) 

0 Period  7:45 - 8:15 
(30 min) 

0 Period 
Group 1 

0 Period  
Group 2 

0 Period  
Group 1 

0 Period 
Group 2 

8:30 - 9:00 
(30 min) 

1st Period  8:30-9:30 
(60 min) 

1st Period  
Group 1 

4th Period  
Group 2 

1st Period  
Group 1 

4th Period  
Group 2 

9:30 - 10:00 
(30 min) 

2nd Period  Break 
(15 min) 

 

134/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

21 

10:30 - 11:00 
(30 min) 

3rd Period  9:50-10:50 
(60 min) 

2nd Period  
Group 1 

5th Period  
Group 2 

2nd Period  
Group 1 

5th Period  
Group 2 

11:30 - 12:00 
(30 min) 

4th Period  10:55-11:55 
(60 min) 

3rd Period  
Group 1 

6th Period  
Group 2 

3rd Period  
Group 1 

6th Period  
Group 2 

12:30 - 1:00 
(30 min) 

5th Period  12:05-12:35 
(30 min) 

   Office Hours/ Student Brown Bag Lunch  
   (students do not eat lunch on campus) 

1:30 - 2:00 
(30 min) 

6th Period  12:35-1:05 
(30 min) 

Teacher Lunch Break 

2:00 - 3:00 
(60 min) 

Duty Free 
Teacher 

Prep 

 1:05-3:00 
(115 min) 

Duty Free Teacher Prep built into this period along with 
collaboration time (details will be worked out at each site). 

 

Proposed Schedule for Santa Cruz HS 

 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

0 Period 
7:00 – 7:55 

Distance Group 1 Group 2 Group 1 Group 2 

Period 1 
8:00 – 9:00 

Distance Group 1 Group 2 Group 1 Group 2 

Period 2 
9:05 – 10:05 

Distance Group 1 Group 2 Group 1 Group 2 

Break 
10:05 - 10:20 

Distance     

Period 3 
10:20 – 11:20 

Distance Group 1 Group 2 Group 1 Group 2 

Per 4 
11:25 - 12:25 

Distance Group 1 Group 2 Group 1 Group 2 

12:25 – 12:55 Distance  Office Hours & Student Brown Bag Lunch 

12:55 – 1:25 Teacher Lunch 
Break 

Teacher Lunch 
Break 

Teacher Lunch 
Break 

Teacher Lunch 
Break 

Teacher Lunch 
Break 

1:20 – 3:15 Distance Learning 
Prep 

Distance Learning 
Prep 

Distance Learning 
Prep 

Distance Learning 
Prep 

Distance Learning 
Prep 

 
 

C.  Low Restrictions Scenario for Secondary 

● Schools would operate under their typical established bell schedules. 

● Health/safety protocols as outlined with guidance from State/County Health. 

 

Grading at Harbor, Santa Cruz and Soquel High Schools: 
Students will earn letter grades in the 2020-2021 school year and families will be given 
the option for Credit/No Credit. A timeline for this option will be published upon the 

135/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

22 

beginning of the school year.  

 

III.  Branciforte Small Schools 

A.  High Restrictions Scenario for Branciforte Small Schools 

1. Alternative Family Education (AFE) 
a. Consultant teacher/student/parent meetings are possible virtually.  

b. Teacher-led enrichment classes will need to be strategically grouped 
Enrichment classes will not be set up for a "online instruction virtual class" 
unless we go to full shelter at home again. If that happens then we will do 
that for the classes and all meetings. 

2. Ark Independent Studies 

a. Students meet with teachers via Zoom or Google Meet.  

b. Each student meets, on average, once per week with their consultant 
teacher and once per week with a credentialed math teacher.    

c. Students will have choices to complete online or textbook curriculum 

d. Consultant teachers meet individually with their students on a weekly 
basis to review and assess student progress. 

e. The Ark staff consider moving to digital protocols for attendance & credit 
tracking 

3. Costanoa and Monarch 

M/T/Th/F:  Group 1: ½ days split with teacher in person & online; IT  

support online 

                   Group 2: ½ days split with teacher online, IT support available 

Wednesday:  All online, PD, prep, collaboration 

 

In person, on site, with teacher - integrated curriculum frontloading for 

independent work when not on site or with IT 

Online with teacher - support continuity of learning plan 

Online with IT - i.e. CHS credit recovery, producing assignments via 

Google Classroom; MCS producing assignments via Google Classroom 

Student independent learning 

Costanoa and Monarch Sample Schedule High Restrictions 

 Monday Tuesday Wed. Thursday Friday 

 Group 1 Group 2 Group 1  Group 2 Groups 
1&2 

Group 1 Group 2 Group 
1 

Group 
2 

136/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

23 

8:30- 
9:00 

Teacher Prep 

9:00- 
11:30 

In person 
instruction 
with teacher 

Online 
learning 
IT 
support 

In person 
instruction 
with 
teacher 

Online 
learning 
IT support 

Online 
learning 

In 
person 
instructi
on with 
teacher 

Online 
learning 
IT 
support 

In 
person 
instructi
on with 
teacher 

Online 
learning 
IT 
support 

11;30- 
12:00  

Lunch 

 Online 
learning IT 
support 

Online 
learning 
with 
teacher 

Online 
learning IT 
support 

Online 
learning 
IT support 

Staff 
collaborat
ion 

Online 
learning 
IT 
support 

Online 
learning 
IT 
support 

Online 
learning 
IT 
support 

Online 
learning 
IT 
support 

2:30- 
3:00 

Teacher prep 

 

 

B.  Medium Restrictions Scenario for Branciforte Small Schools 
1. Ark and AFE 

a. Teacher-led classes may be offered twice weekly in person instead of only 

once if class sizes are reduced to half. 

b. Ark and AFE operate as before distance learning began 

2. Monarch  

a. Students are in two cohorts that meet in person two days a week and 

have distance learning three days a week. 

b. Monarch shifts to a full Project Based curriculum where the on-site days 

are for direct instruction (skill building) to frontload distance learning work 

on projects 

c. Wednesdays are dedicated to teacher PD and collaboration/prep 
3. Costanoa 

a. Teacher cohort is 24 (two groups of 12) and work on rotating schedules. 

Students stay with cohort teacher for the day and complete integrated, 

project-based learning progressions that are personalized for their credit 

earning needs.  

b. Costanoa shifts to a full Project Based curriculum where the on-site days 

are for direct instruction (skill building) to frontload distance learning work 

on projects 

c. Wednesdays are dedicated to teacher PD and collaboration/prep 

 
 
 
 

4. Monarch Schedule 

137/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

24 

 

5.  Costanoa Schedule 

 

C.  Low Restrictions Scenario for Branciforte Small Schools 
● Schools would operate under their typical established bell and appointment 

schedules. 

● Health/safety protocols as outlined with guidance from State/County Health. 

 

Instructional Planning 

Like all districts, SCCS continues to grapple with uncertainty during this unprecedented 
crisis. In our instructional planning, we have moved from crisis response to proactive 
thinking as we plan our instructional models for next school year.   
 

138/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

25 

As we plan to address gaps in learning that may have occurred due to emergency 
diantace learning as well as the typical learning setback that occurs during summer 
break, SCCS’ instructional plan is to have collaborative teams focus instruction on 
essential standards in each course and content area. Essential standards have 
leverage, endurance and prepare our students for the next grade level.  
 
As we deal with these gaps and the likelihood of continuing to have atypical learning 
environments (distance learning and/or blended learning), we know that courses will not 
be able to cover the same breadth as in a typical year. As such, we are focusing on the 
essential standards within each course. 
 
Additionally, teachers will need to regularly use short, quick, formative assessments to 
determine student level of mastery on Essential Standard(s). 
 
Professional development focused on essential standards and formative assessment is 
part of the district Professional Development Plan. 
 

Student Engagement 

In the fall, we may not be able to see students to the extent that we have in a traditional 
school day and year. As such, making personal connections with our students when in 
person is critical.  
 

Additionally, in online instruction, keeping students engaged during synchronous 
instruction differs from teaching in the physical classroom. Below are a list of guidelines 
to support continued student engagement during online instruction: 

● Asking students to keep cameras on, especially when speaking. 

● Keeping direct instruction focused and brief. 

● During direct instruction, providing students with an “incentive” to help keep them 
focused and engaged.  

● Creating multiple Google Meets for students to work in “breakout rooms” or small 
groups online after the direct instruction portion of the lesson is over. 

Professional Development 

Professional development will continue to be important in any learning scenario with 
which we are faced. Staff meeting and collaboration time will continue to be used for 
professional development according to contractual agreements. Professional 
development will be provided at the start of the year to support teachers with the 
blended learning scenarios that are likely in the Fall.   
 

As physical distancing rules ease and classes return to more a normal format, then we 
will continue to offer professional development through release time for teachers. 

139/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

26 

Collaboration, Assessment And Grading 

I. Collaboration 
In SCCS, we utilize a professional learning community (PLC) framework to 
support teacher collaboration. Grade level and course alike PLCs will collaborate 
to ensure continuity of learning and mastery of essential standards no matter the 
instructional model.  
 

II. Assessment 
Assessment is crucial to meet the needs of students and to inform teacher 
practice. Common formative assessments, real time feedback, and interim 
assessments will be a focus for next year as we work quickly to garner student 
achievement data to address learning gaps that have results from school 
closures. Daily teacher collaboration will be crucial in the development of and 
implementation of common assessments.  
 
 

III. Grading 
SCCS understands the need for vetted and fair grading practices in online 
instruction and in blended learning. Next year will be a recovery year while we 
work to maintain grade level achievement of standards. As such, consistent 
student feedback based on clear expectations is of utmost importance.  
 
Elementary grading will resume to the traditional report card structure.  Middle 
and HIgh Schools will also return to traditional grading in the new year.  
However, if at any time during the semester, middle and high school instructional 
programs include blended or distance learning, families may opt for a credit / no 
credit grading system in high school or pass / fail in middle school.  Options and 
information including a deadline for selection of grades or credit / no credit or 
pass / fail will be clearly communicated to families.   

 
In order to encourage students who are ill to stay home, a grading 
accommodation plan will be developed to support any students with flu or 
COVID-19 symptoms.  

Social Emotional Learning 

I. SCCS staff will continue to support students in the following ways: 

A. Teachers will monitor their students for signs of stress and report concerns to 
their site counselors. 

B. Counselors will be available to meet with students virtually, or in person if the 
scenario allows. 

C. Counselors will provide social/emotional learning to students through 
classroom lessons, increasing student knowledge of well-being practices.   

D. School Community Coordinators will continue to reach out to their families and 
offer support in basic needs as well as resources. 

140/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

27 

E. In a high restrictions scenario, all staff will make efforts to reach out to 
students frequently to increase the social interaction options for all students.   

F. Implement Second Step curriculum K-5 grades. 

G. Implement Teaching Tolerance curriculum 6-12 grades. 

English Learners 

A District priority is the educational achievement of English learners. SCCS will continue 

to ensure the goal of English learners to achieve fluent English proficiency as rapidly 

and effectively as possible is attained. 

 

Our English learners, like all our students, have had a disruption of their daily lives, 

have worries about their own families, and have experienced high stress situations. 

These students will need additional supports to rebalance and refocus on the task of 

learning and being productive in the school community. The goal remains for English 

learners to achieve the same rigorous grade-level academic standards that are 

expected of all students, within a reasonable period of time. To accomplish these goals, 

all English learners will receive a comprehensive program of designated and integrated 

English language development (ELD) instruction targeted to their proficiency level, and 

appropriate academic instruction in a language acquisition program. 

 

The California English Learner Roadmap  

The Educational Programs and Services for English Learners (EL Roadmap Policy) sets 

the direction for educating English learners in California. The EL Roadmap Policy 

provides four guiding principles to support and embrace our English Learners: 

A. Principle One: Assets-Oriented and Needs-Responsive Schools 

B. Principle Two: Intellectual Quality of Instruction and Meaningful Access 

C. Principle Three: System Conditions That Support Effectiveness 

D. Principle Four: Alignment and Articulation Within and Across Systems 

 

These principles will continue to guide SCCS in implementing instructional programs for 

English Learners during distance learning and the transition to reopening schools. This 

includes ensuring support to English Learners’ social–emotional well-being.  

 

SCCS schools will continue to closely monitor English Learners and students who were 

reclassified as fluent English proficient to evaluate whether students need additional 

services. Close monitoring is key to ensure that English learners have the opportunity to 

recover any academic losses incurred during school closures. 

 

SCCS schools will continue to ensure meaningful communication with parents of 

English Learners in a language they can understand. Working with parents and offering 

them the opportunity to be involved in their children’s education is key to the students’ 
141/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

28 

success at all times, especially during distance learning and the transition to reopening. 

Community Coordinators are essential in this communication process. 

 

Professional learning opportunities and tools teachers can use focused on meeting the 

needs of English learners during distance learning and blended learning are part of the 

district Professional Learning Plan. 

Career Technical Education 

Due to the nature of CTE programs and the hands-on approach that is needed, 

additional elements must be considered as schools plan for a safe reopening. For a 

safe reopening, CTE teachers and site admin will review the health and safety guidance 

and checklist, as well as guidance for other work sectors that the student may be 

working in. https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/Health-Care-General-Industry.html 

 

A. Develop and implement a system to clean all equipment or tools being used 

using the health and safety guidance. 

B. Tools are checked out by one student at the beginning of the instructional 

period and returned at the end of that class. 

C. Develop a process to ensure that all tools are cleaned each time they are 

returned so that they are ready for the next student or next class. 

D. In an instructional laboratory such as a shop, equipment is used numerous 

times during a class period and will need to be sanitized according to the 

health and safety guidance between use.  

E. Extra time should be spent at the beginning of the year with students to review 

typical safety precautions with additional time reviewing special circumstances 

centered on cleanliness to avoid exposure to COVID-19. 

F. Many CTE courses assign tasks to students who assist in cleanup at the end 

of class, and the students should be trained in all safety processes and 

procedures. It would be appropriate to assign a student each period to ensure 

that equipment is properly cleaned following each use. 

G. Resources for CTE distance learning at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ct/dl/. 

 

 

Performing Arts 

I. Drama  
● Staff are collaborating to identify spaces that will support safe instruction 

and exploring virtual venues for productions. 

142/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

29 

● The following are links to Pefroming Arts COVID resources 
https://www.nfhs.org/articles/performing-arts-covid-19-resources/ 

https://www.setc.org/covid-resources/#1589812063392-6a8cf307-3f39 

 
II. Music  

● Staff are collaborating to identify spaces that will support safe instruction 
and to establish safety protocols for practice and performance.  

 
● The following are links to Perfoming Arts COVID resources 

https://www.nfhs.org/articles/performing-arts-covid-19-resources/ 

https://www.nammfoundation.org/projects/namm-foundation-covid-19-
resources%20 

 

Expanded Learning and Academic Supports 

I. ASES - Elementary After School Education & Safety Programs (BayView & 

Gault) 

A. ASES is facing state budget reductions 

B. Staff are researching new state program guidelines to determine which 

services can be provided during the pandemic. 

C. Before and after school programs are subject to health and safety 

requirements.  We will be consulting with County Health on our options. 

II. Campus Kids Connection (CKC) 

A. CKC is piloting a small program this summer. 

B. Before and after school programs are subject to health and safety 

requirements.  We will be consulting with County Health on our options. 

III. KIDS EXPLORE - Santa Cruz Education Foundation (SCEF) 

A. KIDS EXPLORE is exploring online options for the school year based on 

parent feedback 

IV. Academic Intervention & Supports 

A. Elementary High and Medium Restrictions 

1. Small group virtual interventions will be provided utilizing available 

staff 

B. Secondary High and Medium Restrictions 

V. Middle and High School Math Intervention (in person or virtual 

depending on restrictions) 

VI. Middle School Reading Interventions for students two or more 

years behind grade level standards  

143/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

30 

Co-Curricular Programs 

I. Athletics 

A. Intramural/interscholastic athletics should be limited to activities that do 

not involve physical contact with other students or equipment until advised 

otherwise by state/local public health officials. 

B. County Superintendents are working with the County Health and California 

Central Coast Section of the California Interscholastic Federation to plan 

for safe implementation of athletic programs as health regulations allow. 

C. Details on particular sports will be made available as decisions are made 

with the league and County Health.  

II. Clubs 

A. Under medium and high restrictions clubs would need to remain virtual 

B. Under low restricts clubs can resume as normal 

Guest Teachers (Substitute Teachers) 

● SCCS will work in collaboration with the County Office of Education to recruit and train a 

cadre of guest teachers.  Training will include: 

○ Distance Learning Platforms 

○ Student Engagement Strategies 

○ Health & Safety Protocols 

○ Student Social Emotional Supports 

● Non-classroom certificated staff will be used to cover classrooms if teachers go home 

sick during the day. 

 

  

144/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

31 

STUDENT SERVICES:  Social Emotional 

Supports, Mental Health and Well-being 

I. Tier 1 Universal Supports: Students  
● A universal screening assessment will be administered to all secondary 

students to identify social-emotional needs, level of stress and trauma and 
mental health status. 

● Counselors and teachers will monitor elementary students for signs of stress 
and trauma. 

● Engage parents/guardians in an anonymous survey in order to build 
upon existing assets and determine the current mental health needs 
of students and families (CHKS module via CDE CalSCHLS Learning 
from Home Survey). 

● Develop a referral system for individuals who need targeted support as well 
as access to school-employed and community mental health professionals. 

● Conduct routine check-ins using a trauma--and resilience--informed lens. 

● Engage with students and families using culturally responsive techniques. 

● Training will be provided to staff to increase trauma knowledge and skills and 
reduce stigma associated with accessing services for mental health and well-
being. 

● All secondary students will receive suicide prevention curriculum and the 
National Suicide Prevention Lifeline telephone number will be included on 
staff and secondary student ID cards: 1-800-273-8255. 

● Mental health and wellness resources will be provided on district and school 
websites and in communications with families (newsletters, emails, texts, 
robocalls, etc.). 

   II. Tier I Community and Family Engagement and Support  
● Provide information and links on district and school websites to increase 

access to mental health and wellness resources. 

● Share resources for basic needs:  
○ food banks 
○ Medi-Cal 
○ Covered California 
○ energy programs 
○ Section 8 housing 
○ prescription and patient assistance programs 
○ unemployment supports 

145/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

32 

○  local CalFresh and food distribution  

   III.  Tier I Universal Supports: Staff Wellness 

● Promote mindfulness techniques and staff social supports. 

● Provide routine communication to staff members to encourage self-care. 

● Promote the use of staff support groups to enhance staff cohesion and 
coping. 

● Provide a monthly informational insert in staff checks about mental wellness 
and local resources. 

IV.  Tier 1 Classroom Management Strategies 

● In order to promote safety and consistency in the classroom, teachers will 

establish and implement daily routines for both in-person and online lesson 

delivery. 

● Create a safe and supportive classroom space by using safe space posters 

and visuals that showcase diversity. Classroom expectations should explicitly 

value diversity, kindness, equity, and inclusion. 

● Include stress management or mindfulness practices in classroom routines. 

● Use restorative circles, if possible. 

● Consider the impact of face coverings on the ability to read emotions and 

facial expressions, follow speech, participate in speech-related interventions, 

and focus on academics. 

● Recognize and discuss the potential negative impact of an environment that 

still requires minimized social interactions, face coverings and lack of shared 

materials. 

V. Tier 2 And 3 Early And Targeted Interventions For Students And Staff 

A. Students 

● Communicate what supports are available to assist students with mental 
health issues. 

● Encourage students to use counseling services as needed and promote 
messaging to remove stigma. 

● Provide information on how to access tele-behavioral health services for 
counseling services (individual and small group). 

B. Staff 

146/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

33 

● Provide staff with resources from their Employee Assistance Program 
(EAP). 

● Encourage staff to share about their experiences with COVID-19. 

VI. Attendance and Enrollment 

A. Sites will develop attendance protocols for online learning to connect with 
students and families to promote attendance. 

B. Eliminate attendance incentives during the period of COVID-19 to deter 
students from attending if they are ill. 

C. Conduct home visits for students not engaged in school. 

D. Students impacted by COVID-19 will be excused from attending school and 
not penalized for missed attendance or missed school work. 

VII.  Communication and Family Engagement 

A. Communicate to families across multiple platforms in both English and 
Spanish  (e.g., email, text messaging, push alerts, infographics, website 
posts, social media, news media outlets, printed mailings, etc.). 

B. Use communication methods that will accommodate persons with hearing 
and visual impairments. 

C. Ensure communication is bias free and destigmatizing and does not 
perpetuate stereotypes. 

D. Use existing school resources to amplify messaging: school campus 
signage, marquees, existing handouts, etc. 

E. Offer parent virtual networking and support meetings. 

F. Provide digital literacy training for parents so they can access virtual support 
and communication networks. 

G. Conduct home wellness checks for struggling students while maintaining 
social distancing as required. 

  

147/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

34 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 
 

Students with disabilities are entitled to be educated with their non-disabled peers in the 

Least Restrictive Environment (LRE; 34 CFR §300.114). This legal mandate remains 

true in the context of all reopening plans that result from health-related mandates to 

schools in response to COVID-19. In practicality, this means that students with 

disabilities must be afforded the same opportunities to general education as their non-

disabled peers and the general education model of instruction must be used as the 

basis for establishing a free and appropriate public education (FAPE) for each student 

with an identified disability.  

 

During school closure, school districts have been following state and federal guidance 

with regard to adapting services from a brick and mortar setting into a distance learning 

format. This has included collaboration with families and offering multiple methods for 

service delivery (google meet group for individual direct instruction sessions, pre-

recorded instruction sessions, written assignments posted on Google Classroom, etc.), 

and collaboration with general education staff to ensure that accommodations have 

been provided to students with disabilities in alignment with their individualized needs.   

 

As we plan for re-opening, there are several considerations that need to be addressed.  

These will be considered among all districts within the North Santa Cruz County Special 

Education Local Planning Area (SELPA). The following are some of the considerations 

being addressed: 

 

I. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)/Essential Protective Gear (EPG) 

A. Consider the differing requirements of PPE/EPG for the differing 
populations of students with disabilities (i.e., for those requiring medical 
procedures, toileting, lifting and mobility assistance). 

B. Consider how the LEA will address students with disabilities who refuse or 
are not able to wear face coverings. IEP team will convene to address 
individual needs in this situation.  

 

II.  Planning for Students who are Medically Fragile and/or Immune 

         Compromised 
A. Clearly define how staff can honor physical distancing recommendations, 

yet meet student medical, personal, or support needs. 

B. Determine how adequate space and facilities will be utilized to maintain 
health and safety of students and staff, especially when tending to 
individual student medical or personal needs. 

C. Build in flexibilities to keep students connected and included in the class 
148/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

35 

and school community regardless of how much physical time they are able 
to attend school. Ensure the ability to quickly pivot to attending class 
virtually in order to retain some regular connection to teacher and peers. 

D. Determine any special or unique needs for students with disabilities 
related to planned district or schoolwide procedures and protocols related 
to the following: 

● Daily health screening and temperature checks. 
● Restroom use as well as diapering and toileting. 
● Paths of travel. 
● Use of campuses for recess or recreational activities 

● Cleaning and disinfecting. 

III.  Physical Distancing 

A. Establish any necessary flexibilities for specific students-with-disabilities 
populations such as preschool-age, students with extensive support needs, 
behavioral challenges, etc. 

B. Establish flexibilities and plan for how to implement physical distancing given 
lack of space and facility limitations, particularly for children who will struggle 
with maintaining physical distancing. 

C. Address potential issues from physical distancing rules that could result in 
unintended segregation of students on campuses away from peers without 
disabilities. 

D. Plan for maintaining access to peers without disabilities and ensure that 
students remain in the least restrictive environment. 

E. Determine how the LEA will provide related services in instructional models 
while staying physically distant. 

F. Discuss how LEA staff and providers will conduct assessments while 
practicing physical distancing. 

 

  

149/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

36 

FOOD SERVICES 

We will continue to support and provide food for all our students, ensuring that everyone 
has access to healthy and appealing school meals. 

We are currently working with our local, regional and statewide farmers, ranchers, and 
producers to continue to provide the highest quality and the best nutrition possible 
through speed scratch and scratch cooked meals when possible, maintaining the high 
standard set by our wellness policy and State and Federal regulations. 

To provide physical distancing unfortunately we will need to discontinue all farm to table 
salad bars at this time. However, we plan to provide a variety of premade popular 
salads such as chicken caesar, chinese chicken or garden veggie. All fruit and 
vegetables will be served whole or prepackaged in individual containers or served hot 
with an entrée. 

We are working with our farmers & produce providers to prepack individual servings of 
fresh seasonal harvest fruits and vegetables. We will continue to be a proud member of 
CALIFORNIA THURSDAY and provide California grown and produced meals every 
Thursday. 

All employees have been trained on health and safety protocols, including correct 
application of disinfectants, and maintaining physical social distancing. All standard 
operating procedures for sanitation of school kitchens, cafeterias, food warehouses, and 
central production kitchens have been reviewed and updated as our student’s safety is 
the highest priority.   

Our work with community partners and Second Harvest Food Bank will continue to 
provide additional resources with food insecurities. We will continue to serve all 
student’s healthy meals including meals for the weekend if allowed.  

 

I. General Sanitation and Cleanliness (current protocol) 
● All staff are to report any illness before arriving at work. 

● All staff are required to wash hands on arrival and often throughout shift. 

● All staff is required to wear facial coverings. 

● All staff is required to wear gloves while working with food or serving food. 

● All Staff is required to change gloves when contact areas change. 

● All Staff is required to maintain six feet social distancing when possible. 

● All kitchens are cleaned and sanitized daily. 

 

150/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

37 

II.  Protocols to begin at school start 
● Students will not be permitted in any kitchens or service areas. 

● All salad bars and will be closed until further notice. 

● Students will be handed a prepared meal at the serving window or at the 
designated point of service. Meal counts will still be recorded in the POS 
system.  

● 6ft social distancing floor stickers will show students where to stand as they 
wait for their turn, one way arrows will give directional instruction to ensure 
students do not congregate. 

● High Restrictions:  Students will come to campus for meal pick up while on 
distance learning.  Any students on campus for resource groups can pick up a 
brown bag lunch at the end of resource time to take home. 

● Medium Restrictions: Breakfast service will be coordinated at each site and 
gradespan and will be picked up to be eaten in the classroom.  At the end of 
the modified school day in medium restrictions, students who are on campus 
will be able to pick up a brown bag lunch to take home.  Students who are 
learning online, will be able to come to school at designated pick up locations 
as has been done this spring. 

III.  Food Services Offered  

● Breakfast, Lunch, (Supper and Snack if after school programs are in 
operation). 

● All foods will be pre-packaged by manufacture or Central Kitchen to ensure 
complete safety. 

● All non-packaged items such as fresh fruit and vegetables will be portioned 
and placed in a student tray or pre-bagged (grab and go style) by the Food 
Service Worker to eliminate cross contamination by other students. 

IV.  Alternating Day School Schedule 

● All classrooms must have a designated meal time with time in between to 

ensure proper sanitation between each class. 

○ (per USDA Nutritious Meal Mandate all students must have access 

to one nutritiously balanced meal per school day) 

● Students may receive a breakfast before school or at the designated 

recess/break period.  

● All student meals will be trayed or pre-bagged (grab and go style) and 

ready for pickup. 

● Students will pick up a lunch meal and take it home to eat.  

151/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

38 

V.  For Online Learning Days 

● To ensure students have access to meals at home, all students will have the 

option to pick up meals at their school location at a designated time 

(Breakfast and Lunch).  

● Students cannot stay or congregate on campus. 

● All meals are consumed at home. 

 

At this time, we expect that Santa Cruz City Schools will lose waivers and will not be able 

to serve all students for free. Free and reduced eligibility regulations will be back in effect. 

Also the non congregate waiver will have to be reinstated by USDA for the half day plan 

to be implemented.  

 

  

152/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

39 

TRANSPORTATION 

I.  Safety Protocols and Transportation Planning 
● Provide notification to parents and students about transportation protocols 

● Provide overview and training to staff 

● Acquire a touchless thermometer for each bus route 

● Determine maximum capacity of students for each vehicle while meeting 

physical distancing requirements.  

● Create a plan for seating based on maximum capacity determined 
above, and develop a plan for bus routes that accommodates the 
capacity limitations.  

● Ensure 6-foot distancing at bus stops and while loading and unloading. 

● Require face coverings for students and staff at bus stops and on buses. 

● Develop a passenger entry and exit plan to minimize physical contact. 

● Determine if there is adequate physical distancing space at bus stops and 

school loading and unloading zones. 

● Open bus windows and maximize space between students and the driver 

● Provide drivers training on appropriate use of cleaning products and when 

bus should be cleaned:  

○ Beginning and or end of each day. 

○ Between routes disinfect seats, mats, handles, etc. 

● Require temperature checks/screening prior to loading the bus under 

medium and high restrictions 

● No field trips under medium and high restrictions  

● If a student has a temperature or otherwise appears ill they will not be 

allowed to ride the bus.  

● All drivers should receive training on proper disinfecting procedures for the 

school bus. These procedures should follow CDC recommendations. This 

training should be properly documented. The training should include the 

following at a minimum. 

○  Proper cleaning and disinfecting techniques. 
○  Proper use and disposal of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). 

153/434



Santa Cruz City Schools’ Plan for the Safe Reopening of Schools 

40 

○  Safe product usage guidelines (chemical safety). 
○  Proper methods to empty and dispose of trash. 

 

II. Loading and Unloading Buses 
● Mark or block seats that must be left vacant. Sample seating options: 

○ Option 1: Seat one student to a bench on both sides of the bus, 

skipping every other row. 

○ Option 2: Seat one student to a bench, alternating rows on each 

side to create a zigzag pattern on the bus. 

 
● Seat students from the rear of the bus forward to prevent students from 

walking past each other.  

● To prevent students from walking past one another, afternoon runs should 

be boarded based on the order in which students will be dropped off.  

(Students who get off first should board last and sit in the front .) 

 

 

 

154/434



AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 

    

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Public Hearing: 2020-21 Budget Adoption 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board is required by AB 1200 to conduct a public hearing on the 2020-21 Santa Cruz City 
Schools Budget to allow for public comment prior to the Board approving the budget.  Based on 
the COVID-19 pandemic, the public hearing and adoption of the Budget will take place in Open 
Session at the Regular Meeting on June 24, 2020. 
 
Notice of this hearing was published in the Santa Cruz Sentinel.  The public notice was also sent 
to all school sites, and indicated the availability of the 2020-21 budget in the Business Office. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 

155/434



PUBLIC NOTICE 

Notice of Availability for Public Inspection and Hearing 

CHANGE OF DATE FOR BUDGET ADOPTION 

 

 
 

Beginning June 12, 2020 the proposed 2020-21 Budget of the 
 

 Santa Cruz City School District will be available for inspection by the public at:

 www.sccs.net 

              (SIP restrictions: school site and website available for  

                                                            the 2020-21 Budget and COVID19 Response Report) 
 
 

On June 17, 2020 at  6:30 p.m. the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City School  

District will hold a public meeting on its 2020-21 Budget and its New COVID-19 

Response Report at the following location: 
 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Shelter in Place guidelines are being followed. SCCS Board 

meetings will be done online until further notice in accordance with California state guidelines 

and Brown Act compliance updates. 

 

A link to all agendas, budgets, and the COVID-19 report will be available online at 

www.sccs.net 

 

Any taxpayer directly affected by the 2020-21 Budget may access the meeting via a Zoom link 

to be published on the District website, and will be able to appear before its Board of Trustees 

and speak to the proposed Budget, the COVID19 report, or any item therein. 

 

By: Kris Munro, Superintendent     5/7/20 
 

 

 

Date of Budget Adoption & COVID-19 Report: June 24, 2020 
 

 

 

 

 

 
             

 

 

156/434



AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.2.2 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Adoption of the 2020-21 Santa Cruz City Schools Budget  
 
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the adoption of the 2020-21 Santa Cruz City Schools Budget, as presented at the public 
hearing on June 24, 2020. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools is on a single budget adoption cycle, which means the Board adopts a 
budget by June 30 each year. The budget presented to the Governing Board is based on current 
law and information received with the Governor’s May Revise Budget assumptions.    
 
Subsequent to the generation of the current version of the budget being presented to the 
Board, final 2020-21 State Budget negotiations between the Governor and the Legislature have 
been ongoing and are not completed.  Staff will present an update on any changes to the 
Budget in August that result from the final state level negotiations.  
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
  

 
 

157/434



PRELIMINARY 2020-21 BUDGET FOR BOARD ADOPTION

BOARD MEETING WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020

158/434



BUDGET DEVELOPMENT

• Budget Guiding Principles

• Process – Stakeholder Engagement

• Current Assumptions

• Multi Year Projections

• Local Control Funding Formula Base Reductions

• Local Control Funding Formula Supplemental Reductions

• Parcel Tax Shifts

159/434



SIGNIFICANT CHALLENGES & WHAT WE DON’T 
KNOW

• Revenues for 2020/21 and the out years

• Cash Deferrals for 2020/21 and the out years

• How will the Cost of Living Adjustment be determined? Will it 

be reduced?

• How will the ultimate directions from the State and County 

impact our budget?

160/434



BUDGET DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

• June ??- State Budget Negotiations or Approval 

• June 24th Budget Adoption

• July 1st New Fiscal Year & Statutory Date for State Budget 

Approval

• July 2nd Start Closing out 19/20

• August 1st Budget Revision

161/434



BUDGET GUIDING PRINCIPLES

• Protect student services and supports wherever possible

• Safeguard core student needs for both learning and safety

• Creatively examine systems to maximize resources

• Utilize feedback from stakeholders

• Align resources to existing district goals 

• Provide consistent services within a grade span

162/434



DISTRICT REVENUES

General Fund Only

Unrestricted Restricted Total

Revenue 

LCFF Sources 67,410,739 0 67,410,739 

Federal Revenue 0 4,023,385 4,023,385 

State Revenue 1,248,591 3,352,238 4,600,829 

Local Revenue 7,599,008 840,500 8,439,508 

76,258,338 8,216,123 84,474,461 

163/434



164/434



165/434



DISTRICT EXPENDITURES

Expenditures Unrestricted Restricted Total

Certificated 30,293,031 6,937,529 37,230,560 

Classified 8,754,388 3,424,664 12,179,052 

Benefits 16,320,970 6,726,471 23,047,441 

Books & Supplies 1,718,372 2,050,463 3,768,835 

Services, Other Ops, Outgo 6,491,124 5,306,509 11,797,633 

Direct/Indirect Support (735,561) 735,561 0 

62,842,324 25,181,197 88,023,521 

166/434



167/434



06.24.20

168/434



06.24.20

169/434



06.24.20

170/434



06.24.20

171/434



06.24.20

172/434



2020-21 AUGMENTATION PROGRAMS: $16,901,824

173/434



OTHER FUNDS

Fund Beginning 

Balance

Revenue Expenditure Ending 

Balance

11) Adult Ed $45,865 $80,460 $80,460 $45,865

20) Post 

Employment 

Benefits

$9,862 $200 $0 $10,062

21) Building 

Fund-Bonds

$26,913,133 $67,456,684 $54,921,554 $39,448,263

174/434



OTHER FUNDS CONTINUED

Fund Beginning 

Balance

Revenue Expenditure Ending 

Balance

25) Capital 

Facilities Fund

$533,490 $285,000 $107,440 $711,050

40) Special 

Reserve for 

Capital Outlay 

Projects

$21,312 $350 $0 $21,662

73) Scholarship 

Funds

$1,940,746 $22,348 $35,850 $1,927,244

175/434



Thank you!

Questions?

176/434



17
7/

43
4



17
8/

43
4



17
9/

43
4



18
0/

43
4



18
1/

43
4



18
2/

43
4



18
3/

43
4



18
4/

43
4



18
5/

43
4



18
6/

43
4



18
7/

43
4



18
8/

43
4



18
9/

43
4



19
0/

43
4



19
1/

43
4



19
2/

43
4



19
3/

43
4



19
4/

43
4



19
5/

43
4



19
6/

43
4



19
7/

43
4



19
8/

43
4



19
9/

43
4



20
0/

43
4



20
1/

43
4



20
2/

43
4



20
3/

43
4



20
4/

43
4



20
5/

43
4



20
6/

43
4



20
7/

43
4



20
8/

43
4



20
9/

43
4



21
0/

43
4



21
1/

43
4



21
2/

43
4



21
3/

43
4



21
4/

43
4



21
5/

43
4



21
6/

43
4



21
7/

43
4



21
8/

43
4



21
9/

43
4



22
0/

43
4



22
1/

43
4



22
2/

43
4



22
3/

43
4



22
4/

43
4



22
5/

43
4



22
6/

43
4



22
7/

43
4



22
8/

43
4



22
9/

43
4



23
0/

43
4



23
1/

43
4



23
2/

43
4



23
3/

43
4



23
4/

43
4



23
5/

43
4



23
6/

43
4



23
7/

43
4



23
8/

43
4



23
9/

43
4



24
0/

43
4



24
1/

43
4



24
2/

43
4



24
3/

43
4



24
4/

43
4



24
5/

43
4



24
6/

43
4



24
7/

43
4



24
8/

43
4



24
9/

43
4



25
0/

43
4



25
1/

43
4



25
2/

43
4



25
3/

43
4



25
4/

43
4



25
5/

43
4



25
6/

43
4



25
7/

43
4



25
8/

43
4



25
9/

43
4



26
0/

43
4



26
1/

43
4



26
2/

43
4



26
3/

43
4



26
4/

43
4



26
5/

43
4



26
6/

43
4



26
7/

43
4



26
8/

43
4



26
9/

43
4



27
0/

43
4



27
1/

43
4



27
2/

43
4



27
3/

43
4



27
4/

43
4



27
5/

43
4



27
6/

43
4



27
7/

43
4



27
8/

43
4



27
9/

43
4



28
0/

43
4



28
1/

43
4



28
2/

43
4



28
3/

43
4



28
4/

43
4



28
5/

43
4



28
6/

43
4



28
7/

43
4



28
8/

43
4



28
9/

43
4



29
0/

43
4



29
1/

43
4



29
2/

43
4



29
3/

43
4



29
4/

43
4



29
5/

43
4



29
6/

43
4



29
7/

43
4



29
8/

43
4



29
9/

43
4



30
0/

43
4



30
1/

43
4



30
2/

43
4



30
3/

43
4



30
4/

43
4



30
5/

43
4



30
6/

43
4



30
7/

43
4



30
8/

43
4



30
9/

43
4



31
0/

43
4



31
1/

43
4



31
2/

43
4



31
3/

43
4



31
4/

43
4



31
5/

43
4



31
6/

43
4



31
7/

43
4



31
8/

43
4



31
9/

43
4



32
0/

43
4



32
1/

43
4



32
2/

43
4



32
3/

43
4



32
4/

43
4



32
5/

43
4



32
6/

43
4



32
7/

43
4



32
8/

43
4



32
9/

43
4



33
0/

43
4



33
1/

43
4



33
2/

43
4



33
3/

43
4



33
4/

43
4



33
5/

43
4



33
6/

43
4



33
7/

43
4



33
8/

43
4



33
9/

43
4



34
0/

43
4



34
1/

43
4



34
2/

43
4



34
3/

43
4



34
4/

43
4



34
5/

43
4



34
6/

43
4



34
7/

43
4



34
8/

43
4



34
9/

43
4



35
0/

43
4



35
1/

43
4



35
2/

43
4



35
3/

43
4



35
4/

43
4



35
5/

43
4



35
6/

43
4



35
7/

43
4



35
8/

43
4



35
9/

43
4



36
0/

43
4



36
1/

43
4



36
2/

43
4



36
3/

43
4



36
4/

43
4



36
5/

43
4



36
6/

43
4



36
7/

43
4



36
8/

43
4



36
9/

43
4



37
0/

43
4



37
1/

43
4



37
2/

43
4



37
3/

43
4



37
4/

43
4



37
5/

43
4



37
6/

43
4



37
7/

43
4



37
8/

43
4



37
9/

43
4



38
0/

43
4



38
1/

43
4



38
2/

43
4



38
3/

43
4



38
4/

43
4



38
5/

43
4



38
6/

43
4



38
7/

43
4



38
8/

43
4



38
9/

43
4



39
0/

43
4



39
1/

43
4



39
2/

43
4



39
3/

43
4



39
4/

43
4



39
5/

43
4



39
6/

43
4



39
7/

43
4



39
8/

43
4



39
9/

43
4



40
0/

43
4



40
1/

43
4



40
2/

43
4



40
3/

43
4



40
4/

43
4



40
5/

43
4



40
6/

43
4



40
7/

43
4



40
8/

43
4



40
9/

43
4



41
0/

43
4



41
1/

43
4



41
2/

43
4



41
3/

43
4



41
4/

43
4



41
5/

43
4



41
6/

43
4



41
7/

43
4



41
8/

43
4



41
9/

43
4



42
0/

43
4



42
1/

43
4



42
2/

43
4



42
3/

43
4



               AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 36-19-20: Layoff/Reduction of Hours/Months in the 
Classified Service.  

     
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent-Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 36-19-20 to layoff/reduce hours/months in the classified service as 
submitted in order to meet 2020-21 budget reductions, necessitated by lack of funding. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools will follow the procedures outlined in the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Council of Classified Employees contract and the current Personnel Commission Rules and 
Regulations concerning layoffs and reduction of hours. The timeline and process identified in 
those documents will be properly followed.  With the passing of this Resolution, layoff and 
reduction of hours and/or months notices will be sent, employees bumping rights will be 
exercised and negotiating the effects of these decisions will take place. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$44,774 (Restricted): Medical- $13,835; Special Education- $10,328; and Migrant- $20,611  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 

424/434



                                          AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION #36-19-20 
 

REDUCTION OF LAYOFF/REDUCTION OF HOURS/MONTHS IN CLASSIFIED SERVICE 
 

WHEREAS, Education Code sections 45101, 45114, 45117, 45298 and 45308 authorize the District to 
layoff classified employees for lack of work and/or lack of funds upon sixty (60) days prior notice; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to lack of work and/or lack of funds, the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City Schools 
hereby determine that it is necessary and in the best interests of the District to reduce or eliminate the 
services as specified below for the 2020-2021 school year. 
 

LAYOFF OF POSITIONS:  
     

Qty Site/Dept Classification   
Total FTE 
Decrease 

  
Cost 

Savings 

1 SPED Office Assistant   0.375   $13,835 

1 SPED Paraeducator-Sped   0.2   $10,328 

1 
Elementary 
Schools 

Paraeducator-After School   0.35   $12,132 

 
      

REDUCTION IN HOURS: 
     

Qty Site/Dept Classification   FTE   
Cost 

Savings 

1 
Elementary 
Schools 

Paraeducator-After School 
from 0.3  

$8,479 
to 0.2   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the classified position set forth above shall be discontinued to 
the extent herein above set forth effective August 23, 2020. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent or designee be authorized and directed to give notices 
of layoff and reduction in service to all affected employees of this District pursuant to district rules and 
regulations and applicable provisions of the Education Code not later than sixty (60) days prior to the 
effective date of such reductions and layoffs as set forth above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent or designee be authorized and directed to take any 
other actions necessary to effectuate the intent of this resolution. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools District this 24th day of 
June, 2020. 
 
AYES:_________      NOES:_________    ABSTENTIONS:_________ ABSENT:_________ 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Cynthia Ranii 
Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education 

425/434



 AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Local Control Accountability Plan: COVID-19 Report  
      
MEETING DATE:  June 24, 2020 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Santa Cruz City Schools’ Local Control Accountability Plan COVID-19 Report.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Given the uncertainties caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact California’s response 
has had on a local educational agency’s ability to meaningfully engage with stakeholders, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was established. This Executive Order extended the deadline for 
adoption of the 2020–21 Local Control Accountability Plan from July 1, 2020, to December 15, 
2020. 
 
Executive Order N-56-20 requires that all local educational agencies complete a written report 
to explain the changes to program offerings that the local educational agency has made in 
response to school closures to address the COVID-19 emergency, the major impacts of such 
closures on students and families, and a description of how the local educational agency is 
meeting the needs of its unduplicated students. 
 
A local educational agency’s local governing Board must approve the COVID-19 Operations 
Written Report on or before July 1, 2020, in conjunction with the adoption of its budget. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

426/434



2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Santa Cruz City Schools Page 1 of 8

 
 

COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) 
Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone Date of Adoption 

Santa Cruz City Schools            Kris Munro           
Superintendent 

kmunro@sccs.net           
(831) 429-3410 ext 220 

July 24, 2020         

 
Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of the 
changes your LEA has put in place. LEAs are strongly encouraged to provide descriptions that do not exceed 300 words. 
Changes to Program Offerings 

Provide an overview explaining the changes to program offerings that the LEA has made in response to school closures to address the 
COVID-19 emergency and the major impacts of the closures on students and families. 
 

All schools in Santa Cruz County closed beginning March 16, 2020. Upon the announcement of school closures, the Curriculum, Instruction, 
and Assessment Department developed detailed Continuity of Learning plans for both elementary and secondary teachers.  
 
During the week of March 16, elementary and secondary staff created plans and utilized professional development for teachers to prepare for 
the administration of online lessons and instruction beginning Monday, March 23--the first official week of distance learning for students.  
 

427/434



2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Santa Cruz City Schools Page 2 of 8

During school closures, each site tracked student participation on Google Sheets and updated them weekly. Additionally, site administration 
followed up with students who had not engaged in distance learning via phone calls. Board Meetings became virtual and additional Board 
meetings may be added for July and August to respond to new needs as we approach a new school year. 
 
As we pivoted to distance learning and worked to redesign teaching and learning, we were committed that every teacher, from Transitional 
Kindergarten to grade 12, would provide learning opportunities for their students. Our focus was to provide as much digital learning as 
possible so teachers, families, and students could adhere to shelter in place rules. In order to accomplish this goal, there were several needs:  
 
1. Teachers expressed the need to be trained in how to deliver online curriculum and instruction. Though many teachers have advanced 
technical skills, delivering an entire class online is very different than using technology in the classroom. Four district teachers that are also 
site Tech Coaches provided voluntary virtual training on how to use Google Classroom, Google Meet, how to screencast, and a number of 
other topics to give teachers the professional learning needed to begin delivering instruction solely online. For three weeks, beginning the 
week of March 16th, the four teacher Tech Coaches conducted 22 formal trainings, with over 200 teachers in participation. Teachers have 
put their new learning to direct use as they provided students with digital access to learning. Teachers feedback was that these trainings 
were very impactful. Also impactful was the individualized help the teacher Tech Coaches have provided to their colleagues throughout the 
district.  
 
2. Many students did not have access to a computer device and/or to the internet at their residence, which is now essential. Each school site 
designated times where disinfected Chromebooks were checked out to students who needed a device. Additionally, the district bought and 
deployed 500 WiFi hotspots from T-Mobile to provide families access to the internet. Additionally, information had been provided to families 
in Spanish and English about signing up for low cost internet and/or how to add a hotspot feature to one's phone, as a number of cellular 
providers have removed data restrictions to support families and students needing to access the internet for learning. 
 
3. Remote tech support was needed to support students and the many varied tech issues that arise. To this end, the Instructional Technology 
(IT) department set up a phone hotline as well as a ticketing system so families can directly ask for tech support as needed. 
 
Elementary: 
 
Once training and devices were in place, teachers created content that would support the learning of their students. The focus at elementary 
was regular access to reading, writing, math, science, social studies and physical exercise to prevent “backslide” or loss of skills of students 
that are often seen during the summer because students are not engaged in continuous learning.  
 
Lesson agreements were as follows: 

• Grade levels should work together to create similar lessons for students. 
• Work should be provided digitally as much as possible. 
• Students should get a weekly schedule of assignments for Math, English Language Arts, Science, Social Studies and PE. 
• Students should use the tracking form to write down what they do each day. 

Ideally, lessons were work that students could complete individually or with minimal assistance.  
428/434



2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Santa Cruz City Schools Page 3 of 8

 
Through platforms like Lexia (online reading and writing), EPIC (online books), Zearn (math), Benchmark Workshop (district’s literacy 
adoption), FOSS Science Online, and a variety of other sources, students were expected to complete work each day as their teacher 
advised. Teachers posted a suggested schedule and list of activities for each day. There was a lot of variety in what each teacher's Google 
Classrooms looked like, but students had real opportunities to practice their skills each day. For grading, an ad hoc committee was formed 
with input from teachers. The committee streamlined and developed focused comments to communicate student effort and participation in 
distance learning. Additionally, teacher surveys were sent out. All committees included bargaining unit representatives.  
 
Secondary: 
 
In the Secondary Continuity of Learning Plan, it was agreed that teachers would create two lessons per week for each of their courses 
(because Santa Cruz High is on the Excel schedule, their teachers prepared four lessons per week for each of their courses), and that 
teachers would use either Google Classroom and/or email to send out their lessons and regular communication to students and parents.  
 
Secondary teachers have worked collaboratively in their Professional Learning Communities to develop/modify lessons and existing 
curriculum to be accessible to students online. Like elementary, teachers first approached distance learning as a means to prevent 
“backslide” or loss of student skills during a short term school closure. Thus, teachers provided students with opportunities to practice skills 
already learned and/or provide opportunities for students to go deeper in their learning on topics already covered in the classroom. However, 
once school closures were extended, teachers were asked to determine the essential learnings for the next month and moved forward with 
new learning.  
 
Additionally, secondary teachers kept track of which students were turning in assignments, participating in online discussions, virtual 
instruction, and/or virtual office hours, and which students were not turning in work and did not participate during instruction/office hours. 
Teachers reached out to students individually by phone and/or email. If students did not respond, each school developed a system for 
reporting the need for assistance in reaching out to these students. The district’s goal was to keep students connected to school, their 
teachers, and classmates, and sites diligently worked to reach out to all students and provide additional support when possible.  
 
A major topic of conversation among secondary educators was grading and assessing student learning during this time. Because distance 
learning was going to present a number of challenges for many students (and teachers), the approach to grading had to be an equitable one. 
To this end, Santa Cruz City Schools formed a secondary district grading committee. We looked to other districts, states, the Universities of 
California and California State Universities, and our own State Board of Education for guidance on grading, assessment of student work, and 
awarding credits for course completion. The district grading committee worked to develop student-centered, research-based, equitable 
practices for grading and assessing student work during school closures. Grading decisions were as follows: 
 
Middle School Grading: Students will be assigned Pass/No Pass with distance learning specific comments. 
 
High School Grading: Students were given the option between Credit/No Credit and/or Letter Grades for each completed course, including 
distance learning specific comments.  
 

429/434



2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Santa Cruz City Schools Page 4 of 8

Special Education: 
 
The Special Education Department created a comprehensive plan that detailed how services would be provided for students in the wake of 
school closures. The plan included the following agreements: 

 The Special Education Department aims to give students tasks that they complete to keep them working toward their learning goals. 
Nothing replaces a teacher and classroom instruction, but it is imperative that students are in the habit of doing school work, 
thinking and reading, so when they are able to return to class, they haven’t lost multiple months of growth. 

 All Resource Specialist and Special Day Class secondary teachers will deliver instruction and class assignments utilizing Gmail and 
Google Docs & Drive as appropriate to your content and grade level. 

 Resource Specialist AND Special Day Class Elementary teachers should be generating work related to Individual Education Plan 
goals to send home for continued practice in areas of need. Work should be provided to students in the same way that work is 
provided to general education peers. 

 Provide 2 lessons/assignments/activities per instructional block per week for students. 
 Teachers and Students will be responsible to log into their Google Account daily to send and receive assignments. 
 Other service providers will work with families to provide services through a digital platform when possible (Occupational Therapy, 

Adaptive Physical Education, Speech), or provide alternative activities for service. 
 Individual Education Plan meetings will be held digitally or over the phone. 

Student Services: 
 
The many student support and social emotional support services that Student Services Department delivers were crucial during school 
closures. School counselors and social workers developed a plan for outreach to high risk students. Other areas of focus included: 

 Communication with nurses and health clerks regarding students with health conditions. 
 Collection and sharing of community resources with the Student Services team staff. 
 Preparation and implementation of Virtual Parent Network meetings to support SCCS families. 
 Continued enrollment of students for the 2020-21 school year. 
 Collaboration with school administrators and support staff on attendance protocols, specifically, how to reach students who were not 

participating in distance learning. 

 
Meeting Needs of English Learner, Foster Youth and Low-Income Students 

Provide a description of how the LEA is meeting the needs of its English learners, foster youth and low-income students. 
 

Upon school closures, Santa Cruz City Schools adopted guidelines to frame planning and decisions adapted from the guidelines “No One 
Signed Up for This” by Brandon L. Bayne. These guidelines included operating with an equity lens, with the following beliefs:  

 -The humane option is the best option. 
 -We will make student centered decisions. 
 -We cannot grade and hold students accountable in the same manner. 
 -We will foster intellectual nourishment, social connection and person accommodation. 

430/434



2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Santa Cruz City Schools Page 5 of 8

 -We will remain flexible and adjust to the situation. 

All unduplicated students were offered Chromebooks and hotspots if needed. Each site implemented a process for outreach if students were 
not engaged in distance learning. There has been ongoing communication between the County Office of Education’s foster youth liaison and 
our district’s Director of Student Services to address the needs of all Foster Youth and to evaluate their academic progress. Additionally, 
home visits were conducted as needed. DELAC and ELAC committees continued to meet virtually and met more often. School Community 
Coordinators focused on supporting our Spanish speaking families and also increased the number of personal phone calls to each family 
asking if any supports were needed, and then connected families to resources. 
 
Additional services included the following:  

 “Grab and Go” brown bag meals 
 WiFi connectivity via a hotspot or free service facilitated by district administration 
 Home visits from Social Workers and Community Coordinators (bilingual) 
 Delivery of Safeway gift cards to high need families 
 Weekly Parent Support Network virtual meetings 
 Continued virtual counseling for students in need 
 Increased number of site ELAC meetings and moved meetings to a virtual format 

All documents and communications were translated into Spanish for our Spanish speaking parent community.  
 
Each site tracked student participation and outreach occurred with translation if needed. Teachers, counselors, Community Coordinators, 
Social Workers, site administration and district Student Services Director reached out either virtually, via phone or in person while practicing 
social distancing.  
 
Social workers and mental health specialists facilitated weekly small group counseling for high school students struggling with anxiety, 
depression, and feelings of isolation. Middle and elementary school counselors offered small group counseling session for students to offer 
support and stay connected to their peers. High school counselors reached out to 504 and other high risk student populations to provide 
counseling supports and referrals to appropriate community organizations. Student Services collaborated with Positive Discipline Community 
Resources to provide social emotional support to TK-12 families. 
 
English Learners were given ELD support in small groups through Zoom or Google Meets with their teacher. Secondary students continued 
to receive Designated ELD instruction and many ELD teachers provided extra support to ELD students in their content area courses. 
Integrated ELD supports in content area courses were also included whenever possible during instruction/learning. 
 

 
Delivering High-Quality Distance Learning Opportunities 

431/434



2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Santa Cruz City Schools Page 6 of 8

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to continue delivering high-quality distance learning opportunities. 
 

All teachers committed to using Zoom or Google Meets to conduct regular meetings with their classes. Regular assignments and projects 
were posted on Google Classroom. All classes had at least one class meeting a week, and teachers met all students at least one more time, 
either in small groups or individually. In addition, for elementary students, materials were made available for pickup twice, to support the 
younger students with reading and writing materials.  
 
Each site planned and coordinated pick up schedules to pass out Chromebooks and hotspots. Additionally, hardware was hand delivered if 
needed.  
 
The following virtual trainings were provided to teachers by SCCS teachers, to ensure that teachers were able to deliver the highest-quality 
distance learning opportunities: 

 Beginning Google Classroom 
 Intermediate/Advanced Google Classroom 
 Google Meet 
 Zoom 
 Illuminate assessments 
 Castify - screencasting 
 Google Forms as assessments/quizzes 

Additional online licenses were purchased or procured (if free) and efforts in this area included: 
 Teaming up with T-Mobile to utilize its EmpowerEd program to procure 500 hotspots to help bridge the equity gap and offer families 

Internet access at home. 
 Purchasing additional iReady Math intervention licenses to support with distance learning. 
 Sending out a message to leadership with an attached Chromebook replacement agreement stating all non-working or damaged 

equipment be returned to the site to be refurbished. The returned hardware was documented and replaced with a new working 
device. 

 Providing two lessons each week by secondary teachers with a minimum of one synchronous lesson. Many teachers provided 
synchronous Office Hours as well. 

 Using Google Classroom to post assignments and organize students’ distance learning. 

We engaged our community and sought feedback in these ways:  
 Parent and Student Surveys, pre and post Distance Learning 
 Parent Virtual Network 
 Virtual DELAC, ELAC and School Site Council Meetings 
 Special Education Parent Survey 

 
Providing School Meals/Maintaining Social Distancing Practices 

432/434



2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Santa Cruz City Schools Page 7 of 8

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to provide school meals while maintaining social distancing practices. 
 

Site and locations were based on prior daily participation and the highest free and reduced rates for our district. We provided both a cold 
breakfast which could be eaten the next day and a daily hot lunch. We also packed a bag for the weekend that consisted of two additional 
breakfast and lunch options. For the spring break week we packed a bag to cover all seven days both breakfast and lunch. Mass 
communication went out via email, parent newsletter and department, and was posted on all district websites while electric signage and fliers 
were displayed at school sites. The district also implemented the Seamless Summer Option and the non congregate feeding waiver and then 
applied for the program area eligibility waiver and a local school wellness policy assessment waiver.  
 
The following Health and Safety protocols were in place: 
 
All staff 

 Washed hands on arrival and often throughout shift. 
 Wore facial coverings which the District provided. 
 Wore gloves while working with food or serving food and to change gloves when contact areas change. 
 Maintained six feet social distancing when possible. 
 Were to report any illness and to stay home if ill. 

Additionally, all contact surfaces are cleaned with the change of job duty or task, and all kitchens were cleaned and sanitized daily after every 
use. Both verbal instruction and signage was provided to the staff at the serving locations. A ServSafe certified food service worker was also 
at the location to provide oversight and enforcement of food safety regulations and the meal count.  
 
Meals were distributed daily between the hours of 11am and 1pm. Depending on the location and flow of traffic the meals were given by a 
grab and go style and/or drive up style. At both locations the food was always packed and set on a tray to pass or separate table for pick up. 
We consistently served 1250- 1300 meals daily, and over 71,500 meals served during the pandemic.  
 

 
Supervision of Students During Ordinary School Hours 

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to arrange for supervision of students during ordinary school hours. 
 

Families can contact CDRC to request referrals to child care programs through the website: cdrc4info.org.  
 We partnered with several service providers to offer our students and staff not only Chromebooks and hotspots, but also utilized 

Lightspeed’s Content Filter to keep our district Children’s Internet Privacy Act (CIPA) compliant. 
 We procured 500 T-Mobile hotspots that instantly delivered Internet access to families to help with distance learning. 
 With the help of Cruzio, we recently completed a public wireless drive-up service (in parking lots) at three of our school campuses: 

Soquel High School, Santa Cruz High School, and Branciforte Small Schools. 
 Google Suite offered various cloud services that included Classroom, Meet, and Voice. 
 Clever for Education helped with single sign-on for applications, along with creating class rosters for all our Google Classrooms. 

433/434



2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Santa Cruz City Schools Page 8 of 8

The Boys and Girls Club of Santa Cruz County was the local option for supervision of the children of essential workers. School Community 
Coordinators worked with families to find services for childcare, as well as food and shelter if needed. 
 

434/434


	Board Report with Fund and Resource Description

